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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders, BEAE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China AR AZEREXEFTHIEZMEHEEEER AR
Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), | hereby — (T&RAT)) BE ((EE) @ ((EFT) 122
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, —ATIREMNBAT @B AEH)HE_T " —
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. F+ZA=1+—HIFEZFERS

We saw a remarkable progress on the Group's revenue in 2021, thanks to S HPNEFAN S BILERERE HBREEE
our expansion in trading of medical, health, daily necessities and hygiene ~ EREBZER  AEER S - —FNIKARRE
products business in Hong Kong. Such business has remained solid and ~ FBEIZ1E o HHEE R F R ZCOVID-19Z15E
promising as its demands are mostly unaffected by the social distancing — BYF A BEBE R &I R (XK H B BB 28 » 52 475
restrictions and the depressed consumer sentiments affected by the 1RIFIZEEAT=ER - B5 DSl REERH
COVID-19 pandemic. Against all the odds, the trading segment achieved ~— BEZXFERIIAER LI » E1E5F _FEIEIR ALY
a profit this year in a dramatic turnaround which is only the second > RAREEBIRBI EZ2E T HMAMNES
year since its commencement in prior year. That reinforces our beliefs — BRiBi@ IR A BRIR % o0 K 2E 75 A1) 37 FE 31 Aty et
to diversify the source of income and innovate our business to address  {CRYYNERIRIR A5 2R AU £ 75 ARG o —H E > EE
business risks brought by the constantly changing external environment. BERtEBEESTENBRREEER > RFANRE
On the other hand, our financial leasing segment performance has FHEDEBRIBIIIARESS o TIERIMEBERH
remained weak under stringent regulatory requirements in the finance BF2H: AEEBK IEENAREEMBELNR
lease industry in the PRC. In the course of exploring a new business EfREIEHEMUKRETERHEILUEZDIIER
model, attention has been diverted to coping with the two defaulted — FRI1E o &£& B —KIBITIREMNIEBER AR
finance lease projects and devising the exit plans to get the segment off 200,000,000t & & £IBIR I REFEA S 2R AR 15
the hook. Having considered the predicament and uncertain prospect of a & AHEERIS » M R Ed 20 2 S —IRER Rt
pending litigation of an alleged breach of a RMB200 million loan contract ~ EF X B 45 S RRIEM M EREREIR  HE¥5
brought by a bank, we have not reached any concrete timetable with ERBHEA-Z_—FN\B=1+—HNAS -5
another shareholder of the segment about the re-scheduling of settlement  —J5TE » F A EB BRSNS T2 R BB B 5
time of capital injection, details of which are set out in an announcement ¥ EEGFIESEER  BIBEHEEZE SR
dated on 31 August 2021. On the other hand, we are actively working — E|5Ui& RN EXEFHNE TLEME WEHA)
on some operational issues (such as high cost profile) of manufacturing ~ FFIHEFERIHRT AR E RS R EH I
and sales of food additives business in Liaoning by streamlining the HEBEZBSTESEBEWA B MEIREHESE
manufacturing process and increasing its productivity through set-up of P& ASEBILE Biko

new production line(s) in due course. We will stick to our conservative

and effective investment strategy to generate stable income from idle

funds of the investment segment without increasing the liquidity risk and

compromising opportunities of making good investments.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year under review, the financial leasing segment recorded a
segment loss of HK$42.2 million (2020: HK$234.0 million) mainly
driven by net interest spread from two defaulted finance lease projects
on recourse basis. The food additives business, being classified under
others in the segment information, recorded a net loss of HK$11.6 million
in 2021 (2020: HK$17.1 million). The investment segment recorded a
smaller amount in net profit of HK$2.5 million in 2021 (2020: HK$12.1
million). The trading segment, commenced in 2020, recorded an
encouraging positive result of HK$6.6 million mainly due to whole year
consolidation of a profitable Tripler Holdings Limited which was acquired
in August 2020 (2020: loss of HK$3.0 million). After taking into account
of the corporate and other expenses and finance cost of HK$33.9 million
in 2021 (2020: HK$98.8 million), a net profit arising from share of results
of associates in 2021 of HK$21.3 million (2020: net losses of HK$5.7
million), certain unallocated other income, gains and losses (2021: loss of
HK$1.2 million; 2020: gain of HK$34.8 million), income taxation expense
of HK$4.1 million in 2021 (2020: HK$14.0 million), absence of a prior-
year impairment loss on reclassification of interest in an associate as asset
held for sales of HK$31.0 million, the Group recorded a net loss of HK62.7
million (2020: net loss of HK356.6 million) and a net loss attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$40.6 million in 2021 (2020: HK$242.9
million).

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Group remains confident to weather the storm caused by any
operating difficulties in China and Hong Kong posed by the pandemic
and the geopolitical tensions. By leveraging the experienced management
team, sound risk management and robust internal control and other
existing resources and capabilities, the Group will cautiously and diligently
look for new potential growth opportunities, undervalued assets and
business expansion in order to diversify the income sources and attain a
long term growth.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT g

On behalf of the Board, | hereby wish to extend my gratitude for the hard ~AABERERESZAEEETRESHLUERD
work contributed by all the staff and the Directors, as well as the supportto  #1E > REMIAEN EH L H > AR MANE
the Company from all our customers, creditors, business partners and the B~ EHEA ~ S ER R IGEREE > B A fth
shareholders. We will adhere to our proven management strategy, grasp  FIEI AR AT NI - BRI FERE NN EIES
market trend and opportunities, and endeavour to bring greater value to  B&» #IET GBS KEARRASES

our shareholders and make new contribution to the community. BE AEERHEE -
Wong Lik Ping =

Chairman EHFE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022 B8 T "F#=H=+—H

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$123.6 million in the year ended 31
December 2021 (“2021") as compared to that of HK$66.2 million in the
year ended 31 December 2020 (“2020"). The Group recorded a gross
loss of HK$3.8 million in 2021 as compared to the gross loss of HK$16.4
million in 2020 and net loss of HK$62.7 million in 2021 as compared to
the net loss of HK$$356.6 million in 2020.

For the year under review, the financial leasing segment of the Group (the
“Financial Leasing Segment”) has contributed a segment loss of HK$42.2
million, as compared to a segment loss of HK$234.0 million in 2020. For
the definition of segment profit or loss and detailed analysis, please refer
to note 6 in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for 2021.
The decrease in loss is mainly due to the decrease in impairment loss on
finance lease and loan receivables in 2021.

During 2021, the Group operated the business of manufacturing and sale
of solid sorbitol and compound food additives in its food additives business
(the “Food Additives Segment”). The Group also engaged in research
and development of new products such as Advantame, highly extreme
sweeteners and EPS, clinic diagnostic reagent. During the year under
review, the segment recorded a net loss of HK$11.6 million in 2021,
representing a decrease of HK$5.5 million from a net loss of HK$17.1
million in 2020. The decrease in loss is mainly attributable to absence
of an one-off impairment loss on the property, plant and equipment of
HK$5.1 million recorded in 2020.

The investment segment of the Group (the “Investment Segment”)
recorded a net profit of HK$2.5 million in 2021 as compared to a net profit
of HK$12.1 million in 2020. With rental income of HK$5.7 million (2020:
HK$3.8 million) from investment properties in the PRC and loan interest
income from provision of loan facilities in Hong Kong of HK$5.5 million
(2020: HK$0.4 million), the decrease in net profit was mainly due to an
adverse change of fair value in investment properties by HK$14.8 million,
as a result of a change from a gain of HK$4.1 million in 2020 to a loss of
HK$10.7 million in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
"B W B

During the year under review, the Group engaged in trading business. The
trading segment of the Group includes (i) a recently acquired business
in August 2020 which carries out production, wholesale, distribution
and trading of daily necessities, including personal care and sanitising
products as well as face masks under its own brand or as original
equipment manufacturer (OEM) for other brands and related commercial
activities in Hong Kong (the “New Business”) and (ii) sale of medical and
health products in Hong Kong that commenced in the first half of 2020.
Due to a full year of consolidation of profit contribution from the New
Business in 2021 as compared with only four months in 2020, the trading
segment recorded a net profit of HK$6.6 million (2020: net loss of HK$3.0
million).

After taking into account of the corporate and other expenses and
finance cost of HK$33.9 million in 2021 (2020: HK$98.8 million), a
net profit arising from share of results of associates in 2021 of HK$21.3
million (2020: net losses of HK$5.7 million), certain unallocated other
income, gains and losses (2021: loss of HK$1.2 million; 2020: gain of
HK$34.8 million), income taxation expense of HK$4.1 million in 2021
(2020: HK$14.0 million), absence of a prior-year impairment loss on
reclassification of interest in an associate as asset held for sales of
HK$31.0 million, the Group recorded a net loss of HK62.7 million (2020:
net loss of HK356.6 million) and a net loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$40.6 million in 2021 (2020: net loss of HK$242.9
million).

A significant decrease in net loss from HK$356.6 million in 2020 to
HK$62.7 million in 2021 was primarily due to the decrease in impairment
loss on the finance lease and loan receivables of HK$211.3 million
and the decrease in staff cost, in particular, on management incentive
expenses.

Revenue and gross profit

During the year, the Financial Leasing Segment recorded revenue
and gross loss of HK$3.2 million and HK$27.5 million respectively
(2020: revenue of HK$21.6 million and gross loss of HK$22.0 million),
representing a decrease of 85% in revenue and an increase of 25% in
gross loss as compared to the previous year. The revenue of this segment
mainly represents (i) service fee income for financing arrangement and
consultancy services and (i) interest income generated from financial
leasing and provision of loan facilities. The cost of sales mainly represents
(i) service cost to banks and other non-bank financial institutions on
various kinds of factoring and consultancy services and (ii) interest
expenses on back-to-back borrowings from banks and other non-bank
financial institutions. The main customer base primarily includes large
corporations covering industries of energy resources, manufacturing,
transportation and public utility construction, property management and
education sectors.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the segment revenue continued to shrink as a result of
lack of completed conventional finance lease transactions and the service
fee income therefrom under an unfavorable operating environment in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Against the backdrop of
the stringent regulatory oversight of the finance lease industry and its
resulting difficulties to source back-to-back credit from banks to leverage
prospective transactions, the Group has cautiously applied its own capital
to finance the business in this segment and thus reduced the business
volume. The gross loss was incurred primarily because of the negative
net interest spread of two financial leasing projects on recourse basis
where the interest cost accrued from the borrowings was greater than the
income from the respective defaulted receivables. The magnitude of such
outnumbered the gross profit of the segment and even the Group’s and
consequently turned them into a gross loss position.

Under the Investment Segment, the money lending business and property
development recorded revenue and gross profit both at HK$11.2 million in
2021 (2020: both at HK$4.2 million), representing an increase of 167%
and 167% from those of 2020, respectively.

The revenue in this segment represents loan interest income from
the provision of loan facilities carried out by a licensed subsidiary of
the Company in Hong Kong and rental income from letting out office
properties in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Liaoning in the PRC. The increase
in the segment revenue and gross profit is mainly due to increase in loan
interest as a result of the increase in provision of loan volume in 2021.

The business from the Food Additives Segment recorded revenue of
HK$5.7 million (2020: HK$3.5 million) and gross loss of HK$3.2 million in
2021 (2020: gross loss of HK$1.8 million). The revenue and cost of sales
of the business mainly represent the sales income and manufacturing cost
of solid sorbitol from the production base in the Liaoning province, the
PRC respectively. Due to lack of economy of scale as a result of delayed
expansion plan for increasing its capability and surge in raw material cost,
the Food Additives Segment incurred an increasing gross loss in 2021.

The Trading Segment was a new segment of the Group started from 2020.
It recorded revenue and gross profit of HK$103.5 million and HK$15.7
million in 2021 (2020: revenue of HK$36.8 million and gross profit of
HK$3.2 million), out of which HK$31.8 million in revenue and HK$14.6
million in gross profit were contributed by the New Business. The increase
in the segment revenue in 2021 was mainly due to a significant increase
in trading volume of medical and health products and a whole year
revenue contribution from the New Business as compared with only 4
months contribution in 2020. The increase in the segment gross profit in
2021 mainly stemmed from the New Business as a result of the different
length of consolidation months of results over the reporting periods and
also its sales of new products with higher gross profit ratio in 2021.

PR A B T

A e, W, S el (W D B[ LB LTl W A M me wt

fEl?q ZhE AR (R FHBEER

BEE EERNERREREXRZEZ R
IEEERIRFS BRI B2 B A B YE -
EREEETXEEERNER N BUBIRT
ERSsHEEELEIRERPR S  AEEER
ERBEESARDEEREE M EH

B -ELXERTIZHNMERERENRERS
BEZ&FEE HPEREENESF B
RINERENBIRBIWA , BRREEER T Z
DEE EAEBMPERN) EIE L&D B ER
BAEREBE

RESHEBTHNHEEFRYERENR T
" —EFRE WA KREFRIEA11,200,00078 7T
(CEZEHF 1554420000087 ' R_E-E
ERWA LR DRI NN167%K167% ©

ZDBBWABREEAT —REBFEMBE L
A ERNEHERBENERF] SWA LIRS
&8 PR LB EE R AEYEREE IR
A DB AR ENBIE I EZHRERF] EE
_ﬁ_—fﬂmﬁi\ﬂﬁﬁﬂgi‘é‘mﬁ'ﬁiﬂo

BmANEDEEBRN _S - —FREWRA
5,700,000/ 7t (ZZE =24 © 3,500,000/870) &E
383,200,000/8 7t (ZZE = Z £ : F£381,800,00078
70) o ZEBINAKIHE A F EED Rk B
RAEESES S EEMPE R LFERENEE
AR RIS RS o [RIER F E BERV IR R o B LB E
WA Z TR R B B A0S > B AN
DER ZZZ—FNFEBE

ZRBREERR S _ZFERIMN
ﬁﬁﬁ ZOMR B —FHBRAKRER
103,500,000/ 75 5215,700,000/8 7T (CEZFF ©
Wi A\36,800,00078 7T 52 E 713,200,000 7T) » HH
2 A31,800,00078 7t F2 E#1/14,600,00078 7T A #ft
EBEM - —T " — EE’J&FBH&]\?‘HDTSIEEE
RBEERARERBENBEME " —F2
FHEZNBATR M- - FER0E
BB —FAREMEMEZRHNREHN
NEEEHANEREF— URZZ2 - —FHIH
EENERRSHHEDRPIER

Annual Report 2021
B —EER

9



_——m—r-_.. i

1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
"B W B

The increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to the significant
increase in the revenue of the Trading Segment that substantially offset the
persistent slump in the revenue of the Financial Leasing Segment. Due to
the increase in gross profit from the Trading Segment partially offsetting
the above-mentioned negative net interest spread from the two financial
leasing projects, the Group’s gross loss significantly reduced in 2021.

Other income

The other income of the Group in 2021 mainly comprised of interest
income from trust products and highly liquid wealth management
investments issued by non-bank financial institutions in the PRC and
bank interest income. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in
interest income from trust products and banks.

Other gains and losses

The other gains and losses in 2021 amounted to a net loss of HK$12.5
million (2020: net gain of HK$34.8 million), mainly comprising of fair
value loss on investment properties of HK$10.7 million, a fair value loss
on a contingent consideration receivable of HK$2.6 million and further
being offset by a gain on deemed disposal of an associate of HK$1.2
million. Please refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
breakdown and their changes for the 2021 and the comparative figures in
2020.

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the year
mainly included staff costs (including directors and chief executive’s
emoluments) of HK$40.1 million (2020: HK$94.3 million), legal and
professional, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and various
administrative expenses. The decrease was primarily due to decrease in
staff costs, in particular, on discretionary management incentive expenses
in 2021.

Share of associates’ results

The share of results of associates amounted to a net profit of HK$21.3
million as compared with a net loss of HK$5.7 million in 2020. The
turnaround of result from loss to profit in 2021 was mainly due to (i)
the sharing of profits of Top Insight and Simagi of HK$18.8 million and
HK$0.3 million as compared with that of losses of HK1.8 million and
HK$21.2 million in 2020 respectively; and (i) further offset by absence
of the sharing of profit of Rizhao Lanshan Wansheng Harbour Co. Ltd. of
HK$17.8 million in 2021 as a result of the disposal of the equity interest
held by the Group in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income taxation

Income tax expense for the year amounted to HK$4.1 million (2020:
HK$14.0 million), mainly comprising of (i) a deferred tax expense of
HK$2.6 million and (ii) a provision for current tax for current and prior
years of HK$1.5 million in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The total asset amount of the Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to HK$1,081.5 million, representing a decrease of HK$104.2 million
as compared with HK$1,185.7 million as at 31 December 2020. The
decrease in total asset was mainly due to the repayment of finance
lease receivables from the existing finance lease projects and fair value
losses on equity investments at FVTOCI and investment properties. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total liabilities dropped by HK$45.3
million to HK$565.8 million from HK$611.1 million as at 31 December
2020, while the Group’s total borrowings dropped by HK$49.7 million to
HK$423.7 million from HK$473.4 million as at 31 December 2020.

The gearing ratios (which is calculated from the total liabilities over total
asset) slightly increased from 51.5% as at 31 December 2020 to 52.3%
as at 31 December 2021. The current ratios (which is calculated from
total current assets over total current liabilities) decreased from 1.1 as at
31 December 2020 to 0.9 as at 31 December 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, deposits placed with non-bank financial
institutions and cash of approximately HK$55.3 million (of which HK$18.4
million was pledged to the banks to secure bank borrowings granted
to the Group for financial leasing business (2020: HK$20.7 million))
as compared to HK$192.4 million as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had bank and other borrowings amounting
to HK$423.7 million (2020: HK$458.6 million), HK$ nil (2020: HK$14.8
million) which are due within one year and one to two years at interest
rates from 4.75% to 9.0% (2020: 1.54% to 9.0%) respectively.

For the year under review, the Group has financed its operations with
facilities provided by banks and other non-bank financial institutions,
capital injection from a non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and internally generated cash flows.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates in foreign currency as material
transactions such as revenue and cost of sales were denominated in local
currencies in which the relevant entities operated. The Group did not enter
into any foreign exchange hedging transactions or instruments during
2021.

FINANCING BUSINESS AND CREDIT
EXPOSURE

The Group's major credit risk is primarily attributable to finance lease
receivables and loan receivables.

They are mostly derived from two types of money lending services, namely
the financial leasing services in the PRC carried out by non-wholly owned
subsidiaries (namely, Beijing Ever Grand International Financial Leasing
Co. Limited (“BJEG”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “BJEG Group”))
and the loan financing services carried out by TF Advances Limited (“TF
Advances”) in Hong Kong.

The financial leasing service in the PRC
Business model

BJEG Group principally engages in the provision of finance lease
and related consultancy services in the PRC. The principal mode of
finance lease offered is the sale-and-leaseback model. The principal
loan amounts are back-to-back sourced from peers or banks to the
customers on recourse or non-recourse basis. For recourse financing,
the financing agreement contains a recourse clause pursuant to which,
upon occurrence of events (the “Recourse Events”) specified under
the recourse clause, the ultimate lender has the right to transfer the
outstanding receivable of periodic lease payments due from the lessee
during the lease term back to the BJEG Group, and the BJEG Group will
pay the ultimate lender an amount equal to such outstanding receivable
of periodic lease payments transferred. For non-recourse financing,
upon occurrence of the Recourse Events, the BJEG Group would not be
liable for any damages and losses suffered by the ultimate lender. Due to
difficulty to source back-to-back borrowing to finance finance leases under
the tightening regulatory requirements, they have been recently funded by
the Group's own capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BJEG Group’s target customers in the PRC mainly include sizable
and asset-intensive institutional customers covering industries ranging
from the energy resources, manufacturing, transportation, public utility
construction, property management and education sectors. Most
customers of BJEG Group in the PRC are sought after through (a)
referrals from business partners of existing customers, banks or peers,
(b) marketing and sales effort from BJEG Group’s operation division in the
PRC, and (c) business connections from the Group’s senior management.

Internal control procedures

BJEG Group has taken the following internal control measures in carrying
out the financial leasing business:

Credit risk assessment of customers

(i) The operation division of the BJEG Group evaluates the
background and the credit worthiness of any new customers by
considering its financial position, market share, background of
shareholders and business reputation. The BJEG Group also takes
into consideration their business strategies in the future and their
expansion plan. After assessment, the Operation Division will make
application and the management of the BJEG Group will decide
whether to make quotation and the proposed terms of the finance
lease based on the application, source of funding, preliminary risk
of the application and assessment of costs to be incurred by the
Finance and Treasury Division.

Mechanism in determining loan terms

(ii) After preliminary approval by the management, the operation
division of the BJEG Group will carry out due diligence and checks
on creditworthiness. The BJEG Group studies and analyses the
background of the customer including its operating history and
shareholders and other financial information. Specific needs
in respect of the type and specification requirements of the
assets will also be studied and compared with the BJEG Group's
historical and market records. After due diligence, the operation
division of the BJEG Group will provide preliminary quotation for
client’s consideration based on the estimated cost of capital, return
assessment and approval by the management.
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The BJEG Group will also evaluate different transaction structures
and the relevant leasing and financing options. Lease terms
including time frame, the amount of the lease payment, the
payment schedule, and financing terms including interest rate,
duration and the amount of financing will also be considered for
the purpose of making an overall assessment of the legal and
operational risks of a particular transaction. Interest rate risk,
counterparty and credit risk, the level of debt, and the residual
value risk of the subject assets will also be assessed at this stage.
Cash flow analysis will also be performed to assess the financial
impact of the transaction.

In evaluating a finance lease transaction, the BJEG Group will
assess the profitability and the return on investment, the counter-
party risk, leverage risk, and the residual value risk.

The BJEG Group will proceed to obtain preliminary indications
from the financial institutions for the financing arrangements (if
any). The BJEG Group will generally require indications from
at least two financial institutions on the proposed financing
arrangements.

Approval process for granting loans

(iif)

After confirmation of principal terms with the customers, the
operation division of the BJEG Group will make a final application
and notify the finance and treasury division of the BJEG Group.
With reference to the opinion from external legal adviser, the
general manager will conduct the final assessment of the risk of
the finance lease application and consider recommending it or not
to the board of BJEG, the legal representative of TJ Ever Grand to
approve it accordingly.

After the approval by the board of BJEG, the legal representative
of TJ Ever Grand, the operation division of the BJEG Group will
then proceed to prepare the agreement and relevant document
on the basis of the negotiated and approved terms of the asset
acquisition, lease and the financing of the finance lease (if any).
The relevant documents will be reviewed by the finance and
treasury division of the BJEG Group and external legal adviser for
comments.
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Following the determination of the specifications and the detailed
terms of the financing arrangements (if any), the BJEG Group will
proceed to coordinate with different parties for the finance lease
and financing. The process represents the collaborative efforts of
different departments to ensure that all the related arrangements
will be completed according to the planned schedule.

The finance and treasury division of the BJEG Group grants
financing according to the financing conditions and timetable
of the signed finance lease agreement and the financing of the
finance lease agreement (if any).

All the finance leases will be subject to a further approval by the
board of the Company if an applied amount triggers the disclosure
or shareholder’'s approval obligation of the Company under the
Chapter 13, 14 or 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

(iv)

The operation division and finance and treasury division of the
BJEG Group monitors the receipt of the lease payment from the
customers, and closely monitors if there is any delay in the lease
payment by the customers and follow-up actions to be taken
promptly in case of such delay. The BJEG Group will monitor if
there is any breach of covenant and assess the consequential
impact in case of the occurrence of any breach of covenant.

The operation division of the BJEG Group will closely monitor the
financial condition of the lessees and the guarantors (collectively,
the “Obligors”), requesting financial statements of the Obligor
semi-annually and keeping track of the Obligors in public domain
for analysis, in order to monitor the financial position and the
operating condition of the Obligors. If and when there are some
adverse changes in credit risk in the Obligors based on internal
risk evaluation and/or occurrence of delayed payments, on-site
checks at the Obligors’ premise will be carried out to check the
operating condition of the Obligors, project progress and condition
of the leased assets, all of which will be documented accordingly.
The BJEG Group will obtain the relevant information on the
operating and credit condition of the lessee and condition of the
leased assets through ongoing monitoring, industry analysis, online
information, newspaper and research report, in order to evaluate
the creditability of the lessees and identify any potential default risk
and based on the result of such evaluations, to timely implement
measures such as on-site checks (if and when necessary),
replenishment of leased assets, amendments to the terms of the
lease agreement, seizure of the leased assets or termination of the
lease agreement.
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In addition, the BJEG Group also closely monitors the operating
and credit condition of the customers in order to assess the
creditworthiness of the customer and to identify any potential risk
of default.

As part of the on-going monitoring process, the BJEG Group also
explores opportunities to realise their investments in finance lease
receivable through different financing strategies.

Taking actions on delinquent loans

(v)

If the customer of leasing project is overdue, the operation division,
finance and treasury division and the project leaders of the BJEG
Group will keep a close contact with customers and creditors to
keep the relevant parties informed of the current development and
seek a proper solution to resolve or mitigate the risk exposure of
the BJEG Group.

Upon the enquiry to the customer, the BJEG Group may at its own
discretion grant a limited time extension, usually not exceeding
three months to the customer. Upon passing the time extension
period, the BJEG Group will send demand letters to the defaulting
customers.

In the event of a default, the BJEG Group may also negotiate
settlement proposals with the customer. Where settlement
proposals cannot be agreed, or where the customer fails to
honour the commitments under the settlement proposals, or the
customer lost contact with the BJEG Group, the BJEG Group may
institute legal proceedings against the customer and may, seek
to realise the property for public auction to recover the principal
and outstanding interest. In determining the time extension, the
settlement proposals and the possible enforcement action, we will
have regard to, amongst other things, (i) the loan-to-value ratio of
the loan (including interest), (ii) the costs of legal action, and (iii)
the probability and ability of realizing the underlying securities.

The loan financing services in Hong Kong

Business model

TF Advances is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a licenced
money lender under the Money Lender Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), which principally engages in the provision of loan
financing service in Hong Kong by providing unsecured or secured loan
to its customers. TF Advances generally utilises its internal working capital
as the loan principal. TF Advances's target customers in Hong Kong
include individuals and institutional clients. Most loan transactions of TF
Advances in Hong Kong are sought after through (a) referrals from its
existing customers or business partners, and (b) business connections of
the Group's senior management.
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Internal control procedures

Credit risk assessment of customers;

TF Advances has taken the following internal control measures in carrying
out the loan financing business:

0)

An eligible client could be a corporate or an individual whose
creditworthiness and loan collateral are evaluated and approved by
the finance department, legal department and the chief executive
officer of TF Advances (collectively, the “Management Team”).
All the loans will be required to be further approved by the board
of the Company if an applied loan amount is over HK$25 million
or an amount that would trigger the disclosure or shareholder’s
approval obligation of the Company under the Chapter 13, 14 or
14A of the Listing Rules, whichever is the lower (collectively, the
“Threshold”).

Upon receiving the applicant’s particulars and loan terms
documented in a loan application form, TF Advances will
obtain proof of identity, background and contact details from
the applicant for verification. TF Advances will also conduct
background search and credit search against the applicants
and guarantor (in case of any personal or corporate guarantee).
TF Advances will also follow the money laundering and terrorist
financing prevention procedures in the course of collection and
verification of information about their backgrounds. If there is any
collateral such as pledge of real estate property, TF Advances
will perform preliminary valuation and validity check on the legal
titles of the collateral to be pledged. In case of low liquidity of the
collateral, we may consider engaging independent surveyor or
valuer to conduct a valuation.

Mechanism in determining loan terms

(i)

The operation team of TF Advances will determine the offer terms
of the loan such as the amount and the interest rate of the loan
and the period of repayment, on a case-by-case basis considering
the applicant’s background and other factors (if applicable) such
as the following:

a) Tenor of the loan;
b) Any personal or corporate guarantee;
c) Any encumbrances on the collateral and its liquidity and

marketability;
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d) Valuation of the mortgaged real estate (if any);

e) Salary income proof, duration of current employment,
personal net worth for individual customers;

f) Financial position and performance on the latest auditor's
report/management accounts;

g) Proposed use of proceeds;

h) Benchmarking performed by obtaining quotations of the
prospective loans in kind by other peers.

After collecting all necessary information about the applicants
and the loans, a credit assessment form will be completed and
submitted to the Management Team for approval.

Approval process for granting loans

(iif)

The Management Team will approve the application if they think
fit based on the results of the background checks, borrower's/
guarantor’s repayment ability, and legal searches and valuation of
collateral. Prior to the approval of the application, the Management
Team may also consult the independent non-executive directors
of the Company for their independent view and professional
judgement on the loan application. In addition, the financial
controller of the Company will assess the cash position of the
Company to ensure the sufficiency of working capital of the
Company.

It is a policy of TF Advances that the loan amount should normally
not be more than 100% of the market value of the collateral and/
or not be more than 5-years of total forecasted salary income/net
profits. Should there be any shortfall, TF Advances may request
personal guarantees from the borrower’s directors and/or ultimate
beneficial shareholders (in case the borrower is a company).
Additional approval from the Board is required when the applied
loan amount exceeds the Threshold.

After obtaining the internal approval, TF Advances will enter into
the loan agreements with the borrowers and/or guarantors. TF
Advances may also instruct it external legal consultant for the
preparation and execution of the required legal documents.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

(iv)

Upon the loan agreements being entered into, the finance
department of TF Advances will mark the date of repayments of
each loan. One week before the payment due date, a notice for
demand is served to borrower. When it is overdue, an overdue
notice will be brought to the attention of senior management of TF
Advances for further consideration.

At each year end, a valuation of collateral is performed to ensure
the sufficiency of loan-to-value ratio at least reaching 100%.
At each end date of the bi-annual reporting period on 30 June
and 31 December of each year, the finance department of
TF Advances will obtain an updated statement of collaterals
or financial statements of borrower and guarantors (if any) for
evaluation of credit worthiness.

Taking actions on delinquent loans

(v)

When the loan is overdue, the finance department of TF Advances
will contact the borrower and guarantor (if any) to remind them
of the possible enforcement action(s) and timing of repayment
and seeking reasons for the delay in payment. Depending on the
reasons given by the borrower, TF Advances may at its discretion
grant some time extension for a period usually not exceeding 3
months.

When the loan is overdue for more than 1 month, a written notice
for demanding repayment will be served to the borrower and
guarantor (if any).

When the loan is overdue for more than 3 months, a demand
letter will be served to the borrower and guarantor (if any). If
no concrete response is received, legal proceedings may be
commenced against the borrower and guarantor (if any). TF
Advances may also apply to court for freezing and/or disposing of
the collaterals.

Normally settlement proposals like rescheduling the repayment
schedule would be negotiated between the defaulted customer
and TF Advances. However, such repayment schedule shall be
approved by the director(s) of TF Advances. Further approval from
the Board will be required, if the repayment proposal involves a
change in principal terms of any transaction which exceeds the
Threshold or triggers any other requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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TOP FIVE BORROWERS aARBETRA

The following table sets out the top five borrowers of the Group and the — FFRF|HAEBRI A ZERAKRERERUGE
respective principal terms of finance lease receivables (“FL”) and loan  (TRdZEME) MEHHME (BEF) SENEE

financing (“Loan”): &= .
As at Percentage As at Percentage
31 December tothe 31 December tothe
2021 total gross 2020 total gross
Principal principal Principal principal
Amount amount Amount amount
:_E — 7 —= E
+=A +ZA
=t-H FERE =t—H R
Type of Interest rate, term, maturity and b Bt i 6 Bt
receivable securities obtained HK$'000 HK$000
FERFREB R R 8RR DA A RV RORLR FHET FEr
Gross:
HEEE
Customer 1 - Qinghai FL 5.46% per annum, 5-years ending in April 2023, secured
by leased machinery and guaranteed by its ultimate
holding company. 245,380 43.3% 237,520 429%
ER1-5E& MEHE FAX546% HE_Z_—FENAARLE O
ERmERT SRR IER AT ER
Customer 2 - Sanya Loan 9% per annum, 1-year ended in Jan 2020, secured by
leased aviation facilities and others and guaranteed by
its holding company. 165,631 29.2% 160,326 29.0%
BR2-=0 N Eﬂfweﬁi_v_vﬁ BAE—% hiREH
SRR E A EAR IR R E R AT IR
Customer 3 Loan 10% per annum, 1-year ending in Jan 2023, secured
by a share charge by a chargor company in which
Customer 3 indirectly owned 90% equity interest. 56,000 9.9% - -
EF3 B FNRI0% BE_S_=£-RBA—5 HmEF3
B ER0%REN AL AR RN ERIEER-
Customer 4 FL 11.0% per annum, 2 to 3 years ending in
Nov 2023 and Apr 2024, secured by leased
equipment and guaranteed by its former holding
company. 36,807 6.5% - -
ER4 WEME ENRN0 BE_Z_ZE+-AR_ZE_NE
MEAHME=F AR EREFERLREA
ERRAENER
Customer 5 FL 4.75 per annum, 5-years ending Jan 2022, secured by
leased machineries and security deposit. 12,269 2.2% 59,380 10.7%
®F5 MEMRE FAEA% BEZS__F—AANRAE B
B RESIER
Others Loan - - 30,509 55%
Hih £
Others FL 8,588 1.5% 14,845 2.7%
Hi MERE
Others - treasury Loan
investment (Note 6) 42,451 7.4% 50,656 9.2%
Hit — E&KE N
(F35t6)
Total gross principal amount 567,126 100% 553,236 100%
AEHRE

20 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (“ECL”) OF FINANCE FRiEBEHERWSREKESHZ

LEASE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES FEHEEEE ((RBEEES
#H1)
The following table sets out the details of ECL of finance lease and loan N &I ER SRR BIRER Z A
receivables: EERIEFE .
As at As at
31 December Percentage 31 December Percentage
2021 to the 2020 to the
Amount of total Amount of total
Provision provision Provision provision
RZIEZ—%F RIZEZEE
+ZR +-A
ECL Stage for =+-H (hREEE =+—H (GEREEE
Type of 2021 balance BELE Aot BB BAl
receivable “EZ—FHHZ Notes HK$'000 HK$000
REWRER RHREEHERE BizE FET FET
Gross:
aE

Less: Provision for
impairment losses

R EREEE

Customer 1 - Qinghai FL 3 Note 1 (144.774) 56.7% (140,137) 49.9%
%Fl1- 58 REHEE Bzt
Customer 2 - Sanya Loan 3 Note 2 (103,059) 40.4% (108,072) 385%
BR2-=m am; fizr2
Customer 3 Loan 1 Note 3 - - N/A N/A
®A3 £ fifzE3 EA ~EA
Customer 4 FL 1 Note 4 (3,681) 1.4% - -
&R4 HMEHRE fizE4
Customer 5 FL 1 Note 5 - - (3,563) 1.3%
&F5 RMEHE fizE5
Others Loan 3 - - (25,509) 9.0%
Hih E
Others FL 1 (1,227) 0.5% - -
Hih REHEE
Others - treasury
investment (note 6) (2,454) 1.0% (3,563) 1.3%
Hifh - BEEKE
(Fi3t6) (2,454) 1.0% (3,563) 13%
Total provision (255,195) 100% (280,844) 100%
bRk
Total net amount 311,931 272,392
B
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Basis of Assessment of ECL

ECL assessment on receivables are performed individually based on
probability-weighted expected credit losses of multiple possible events
(“PWECL") model adopted in accordance with HKFRS 9, which involves
4 key parameters, namely (i) Exposure at default (“EAD"); (i) probability
of default (“PD"); (iii) Loss given default (“LGD”) or 100% minus recovery
rate upon default (“Recovery Rate”); and (iv) discount rate. The depth of
PWECL model depends on the year end status of recoverability of each
receivables which are classified into 3 stages from the lowest stage 1 to
the highest stage 3 further set out in note 35 and summarised as below.
References are made to an announcement dated 3 September 2021 for

RHEEERZFHEE

RIFEBHHREERFNH KA ZER A
MR INETERE S8 (R EEL
E8E58)) E3 BTG ERAIENTERE
B8R i RIOERES %0 BI()ENO
(TEADY) ;(i)B&IHEE (TPD) ;(iii)iE1 ’3%59%9‘7
(TLGD ) Z100%B: A B (MaURK)) ;

(iv)BEIR R - PWECLIR BUAY IR J*HUJBGIEFELI&
ﬂEMEXTW@#Rlﬁwﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ym
B MR EMNBIRRERS B CE—

ﬁ%ﬁmwa%ylmﬂmT'ﬁﬁﬁﬁéxﬁ
B A2EREAS—5NA

Length of assessment

FHER R

capital terms used and further details. Ak iE—
=Hz RS

Type of stage Year end status of recoverability

PEEREERY FRATULETT

Stage 1 The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any

12 month ECL

past-due amounts, or debtor frequently repays after due dates but

usually settle after due date

F1PEES HFEANWENRBEBRTEARRIE EFBALERIHAE 12EAEREESE
BEEEEENIAEBES

Stage 2 There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL-not credit-
recognition through information developed internally or external impaired
resources

FOPEEL BN RINBERPIEINER P BLCE EERMRT  FHREREEEE—IFE
REAE HIE N BRE

Stage 3 There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL-credit-impaired

FHIPEEL BRBRETEEREERE FHRNTEREEBE-BE

BRE

General collaterals, guarantees obtained and comments over the
movement in the total provision for ECL

As at 31 December 2021, FL were all secured by respective equivalent or
more worth of net book value of leased machinery and equipment. FL with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$144,774,000 were also guaranteed
by related parties of customers and/or customers’ deposits.

As at 31 December 2021, Loan other than those for treasury investment
were all secured by respective equivalent or more worth of net book value
of respective leased aviation facilities and unlisted equity interest of a
company and also a carrying amount of HK$62,572,000 was guaranteed
by a related party of customer.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AESREERSEAREREPENESHE
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The provision for impairment losses on receivables decreased by HK$25.6
million from HK$280.8 million as at 31 December 2020 to HK$255.2
million primarily because of a write-off of a fully impaired loan of HK$25.5
million in prior years. Other than this, there was a relatively mild increase
or decrease in provision for each receivable that offset each other and did

not impact on the total during the year.

Notes:

As at 31 December 2021, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$144.8 million is based
on EAD of HK$229.4 million after netting off collateral value of HK$15.9 million, PD
of 100% (i.e. default events were triggered in prior years), LGD of 61.03% or recovery
rate of 38.97% and discount factor of 0.95. There were no significant changes in the
parameters and thus no significant movement in the provision for ECL noted.

As at 31 December 2021, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$103.1 million is based
on EAD of HK$165.6 million, PD of 100% (i.e. default events were triggered in
prior years), LGD of 62% (2020: 57.7%) or recovery rate of 38% (2020: 42.3%)
and discount factor of 1.0 (2020: 0.91). There was a slight overprovision for ECL of
approximately HK$5 million mainly because of the timing factor as the repayment
scheme under the approved restructuring plan was in process and the compensation
will be receivable shortly after the current year end.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no provision for ECL mainly because the
estimated collateral value sufficiently covers the credit exposure.

As at 31 December 2021, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$3.7 million is based
on EAD of HK$36.8 million, PD of 1.2%, LGD of 61.9% or recovery rate of 38.10%
and discount factor of 0.9. The receivable was newly acquired in 2021 and no
comparison with prior year can be made.

As at 31 December 2021, the prior year cumulative ECL amount was fully reversed
because the last installment receivable was subsequently received.

The receivables made for treasury investment purpose are mainly trust products
issued and managed by trust management companies in the PRC and not

considered part of the principle activities of the money lending business.

B EEREFEENR S _FF+_4
=-+—H#9280,800,0007 7T/ 125,600,0007 75
%255,200,000/87T » EZMAIMEE E—FEEH
R{EERR25,500,000/87T < FRlb 2 §h > K FEURRIR

BHLAREARNEY) E R WERBE
ji:ﬂ:lt B4,

RO =S
BT

1. RIZZ—E+"B=+—R1 Rt RHEEER
+%8144,800,00078 7 EFREAD 229,400,000 7T (40
FRIEIR T EEL5,900,00070) » PD 100% (Bl E—F
EMEIELNEM 2 LGD 61.03%3 PIHR[E1Z3897% K
FEIRAB095- 2H I ME AL AILTEIEER
BEETRHIREES
2. RIBEZ—F+ZA=+—H R RAEEHE
£ %8103,100,00078 L& EAD 165,600,000 7T > PD
100% (Bl E—FEREEIRAEM) » LGD 62% (CTZ2Z
T 1 57.7%) WAIWEIEIRY% (T2 T4 1 423%)
RAIREH10 (CE2EF 1 09]) -FHHEEHA
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TR ERER N A ERT AR FULE

3. REZZ-—F+"RB=+—R UENRBPEEES
Bt TERRAMGH R REERUES
EERM-

4. RZZ2Z—F+ZA=+—8 R BHREES

185 %83,700,000 & R EAD 36,800,000 7T > PD

1.2% > LGD 61. 9%@74&@%38 10% K A IR1A#09
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted bank deposits of HK18.4 million
(as at 31 December 2020: HK$20.7 million) and the finance lease
receivables of HK$100.6 million (2020: HK$97.4 million) were pledged to
the banks and other non-bank financial institutions for facilities granted to
the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s 51.39% equity interest in Ever
Grand (Tianjin) Finance Lease PRC Co., Ltd. was pledged to secure a
borrowing facility to finance prospective finance lease transactions, which
did not materialize later and the facility had never been utilised. The share
charge was subsequently discharged on 24 January 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, there was a litigation in the PRC about an
alleged breach of loan contract brought by The Export Import Bank of
China (“EXIM Bank”) against BJEG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company in the PRC. A court hearing was held in late April 2021. The
loan contract was related to Qinghai, and its terms and amount of loan
proceeds were back-to-back with those of the finance lease agreement
with Qinghai. In this appeal, EXIM Bank as an appellant appealed to
overturn the judgement at the first instance (Notification ([2020] Shan 01
Min Chu 659) handed down by the Intermediate People Court of Xi'an
City, Shanxi Province (the “Xi'an Intermediate Court”) which dismissed
EXIM Bank’s claims brought against BJEG regarding the alleged breach
of loan contract in December 2020. In the appeal case, EXIM Bank
reinstated its claims to require BJEG to repay the outstanding principal,
overdue interests (i.e. normal, compound and penalty to be charged
at 50% of the prevailing commercial lending standard rate of the same
kind in the PRC plus 15%) under the loan contracts and court fees or
requested to return the case for retrial. As at 31 December 2021, the
relevant carrying amount of outstanding principal and interest amounted
to RMB200 million and RMB27.8 million recorded in borrowing and other
payable respectively. As at the date of this report, the judgement of the
appeal case is not yet available.

Save as disclosed hereinabove, the Group had no other material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments of HK$0.1
million (2020: HK$0.1 million) for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the Group will likely continue facing a few operating
challenges. In China where the Group'’s financial leasing business is
operated, it demonstrated a strong rebound in economic growth in
2021 with a year-on-year growth of China's GDP of 8.1%, thanks to
the resumption of normal commercial activities through the successful
implementation of zero tolerance COVID-19 elimination strategy
throughout the year. Having said that, the recent domestic outbreak of
the new COVID-19 variant, Omicron, has caused more broad-based
and longer-lasting restrictions, leading to larger disruptions in economic
activities. In addition, China has been struggling with the risk of increasing
level of corporate and local government debts. In the midst of continued
geopolitical tensions and a threat of deglobalization, China’s sustainable
economic growth will depend on the success of economic rebalancing
toward consumption, services, and green investments, which places
further reliance on markets and private sector initiative collaborated
with necessary government supports to achieve the required structural
changes. None of these rebalancing acts are easy.

In Hong Kong where the Group has been placing emphasis on domestic
consumption market especially on the consumer products found in
pharmacies, economic recovery remained robust through successful
implementation in COVID-19 containment measures and a series of anti-
epidemic subsidies schemes launched by the Hong Kong government
until recently a fifth wave of outbreak of Omicron variant of COVID-19
pandemic, which hit the city hard. People from all walks of life on almost
every aspect and commercial activities have been heavily disrupted by
loads of stringent social distancing restrictions. Unemployment rate is
expected to rise as a result of more retail shops and vulnerable SMEs
going out of business. The future local economy lies on the success in
controlling the new wave of infections, the reopening of the borders and
the political stability.

As to the Financial Leasing Segment, it has been exploring new
business models to thrive under the prevailing regulatory requirements
and targeting customers in some promising sectors like green energy,
environment friendly and mechanic and engineering. Since the
restructuring plans of two defaulted customers had been approved by the
court and their creditors and the execution of the plans were still under
progress as at year end of 2021, a greater effort has also been put to sort
out the creditors of these two defaulted recourse businesses especially
in mitigating the risk of litigation brought or to be brought by them. It
involves enormous amount of negotiations with the creditors and gathering
favorable admissible evidences to prepare for a legal battle with an aim to
get the segment off the deal structure or/and reach out of court settlement.
At the same time, it continues to adhere to the risk management and
control policies to critically evaluate any potential adverse change in credit
risk of other existing finance projects and promptly take recovery actions in
a bid to safeguard the Group's assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As to the Investment Segment, the Group will continue to adopt a
conservative investment strategy towards the investment portfolio
comprising of equity, debt and real estate. With the robust risk
management and control policies, the Group will closely assess its
performance and optimize its composition in order to strike a balance
between a stable return and the necessary liquidity of the Group.

As to the Food Additives Business, it has been grappling with the
surge in raw material price of sorbitol. With a higher cost profile of the
manufacturing process, it is uneasy to shift the burden to customers
and thus the gross profit is suppressed. Leveraging the purchase team’s
knowledges and connections with the supply chain, it has been exploring
business opportunity in the trading of those raw materials, though at lower
gross profit, to make up for the narrower margin of sales of manufactured
goods and broaden a new income source at a minimum setup cost. In the
mid to long term, the primary focus still remains on increasing the capacity
of solid sorbitol through establishment of one or more new production lines
in order to tackle the persistent problem of economic of scale and build
up the bargaining power with customers. The expansion plan has been
subject to new fresh capital. In the meantime, the segment will continue to
enhance the production stability, broaden the customer base in different
provinces and industries, and optimize the production process to reduce
operating costs.

As to the Trading Segment, the Group will emphasize on product
diversification, various distribution channels and widening customer base
in different territories to bolster the business volume. The segment has
recently put for sale certain proprietary Chinese medicines (“PCMs”),
health products and other personal care products on an e-commerce
platform in China specialising in the sales of a variety of quality life
products. In addition, seeking partnerships with various healthcare
companies allow us to expand our product line into the fields of maternal
and child healthcare as well as medicines. Leveraging a wholesaler licence
in PCMs, the Group has reached in a delicate stage to obtain a direct
exclusive distributorship of PCMs with manufacturers to enhance the
volume and profitability. Leveraging our personal network and expertise in
the industry, establishment of extensive distribution network of small and
medium dispensaries in Hong Kong and the public awareness of hygiene
and health during the pandemic, the future demand for health products,
personal care and other medical products that the segment offers looks
promising. The Group will remain committed to cultivate the business and
consider it as a growth impetus in the future.

In addition to the existing segments, the Group will cautiously and
diligently explore new potential growth opportunities, undervalued assets
and business expansion in order to diversify the income sources, bring
in profits and ultimately attain long and sustainable growth and enhance
shareholders’ value as a whole.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
DISPOSALS

At 31 December 2021, the Group held loan receivables (excluding from
a loan receivable from sale-leaseback transaction and those from money
lending business) of HK$40.0 million (2020: HK$47.1 million), equity
investments at FVTOCI of HK$108.8 million (2020: HK$123.8 million)
and financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$147.1 million (2020:
HK$156.1 million).

During the year, the Group invested in loan receivables through 1 to 3
years trust products of HK$30.2 million (2020: HK$45.4 million) issued by
financial institutions in the PRC. The Group recorded loan interest income
from loan receivables amounting to HK$3.1 million (2020: HK$5.9 million)
and a reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$1.2 million
(2020: impairment loss of HK$3.4 million).

The equity investments at FVTOCI of HK$108.8 million as at 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$123.8 million) represented unlisted equity
securities issued by the PRC and Hong Kong private entities with
operations including manufacturing and sales of medical equipment,
rockets and satellite network, new materials for industrial and medical
equipment, batteries for EV cars, provision of asset management of
unlisted investments in the PRC and SFC licensed business activities
of type 1, 2, 4, 5 and 9 in Hong Kong. There was a fair value loss of
HK$18.7 million recognised through other comprehensive income in
2021 (2020: a fair value loss of HK$3.6 million) and no dividend income
was recognised to profit or loss in 2021 and 2020 from the equity
investments at FVTOCI.

The equity investments at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2021 included
the equity investment of 55,500,000 shares of Imagi Brokerage Limited
(“Imagi Brokerage”), representing approximately 9.69% of the total issued
shares of it (as at 31 December 2020: 55,500,000 shares or 9.99%),
whose fair value was HK$55.7 million or approximately 5.15% of the
Group’s total asset (as at 31 December 2020: HK$74.3 million or 6.3%)
and the cost was HK$74.3 million. The Imagi-Brokerage mainly carries
out businesses of type 1, 2, 4, 5 and 9 regulated activities licensed by
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) in Hong Kong. With
no dividend income received, there was an unrealized fair value loss of
HK$18.6 million recognised to other comprehensive income in the current
period (2020: nil), which is mainly due to significant operating losses of
the Imagi-Brokerage caused by material fair value losses in listed equity
investments though its revenue from brokerage and asset management
services increased significantly. The purpose of the investment is mainly to
bring returns to the Group by dividends and capital growth. Details of the
investment are summarised as below:
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Investment ~ Asat 31 December ~ Asat 31 December  As at 31 December
ot ®tZREt-A KIRZt-B B+IREt-A
Name of Place of Securities held ~ Proporton of ownership  Percentage tothe  Nature of (HKS FITOC! Fair value loss Dividend income
Ivestment Company incorporation by the Group held by the Group Group's net asset ~ business millon) (HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
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Other than Imagi Brokerage, the Group held no other single significant
investment, classified as the equity investments at FVTOCI, in any investee
company with a value of 5% or more of the Group's total assets as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The financial assets at FVTPL of HK$147.1 million as of 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$156.1 million) comprised of (i) 10 different unlisted fund
and equity products in the PRC of HK$72.2 million (2020: 7 different
unlisted fund and equity products in the PRC of HK$88.0 million) and (ii)
numerous listed equity shares and bonds of HK$74.9 million in the Hong
Kong and the Chinese stock exchanges (2020: HK$68.1 million). There
was a fair value gain of HK$17,000 recognised to profit or loss in 2021
(2020: fair value loss of HK$2.5 million).

The Group held no single investment classified as the financial assets at
FVTPL with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held two investment properties
with aggregate fair value of HK$142,369,000 (as at 31 December 2020:
HK$148,331,000) let out for rental income in Shanghai and Liaoning
the PRC. During the year, the Group recorded total rental income of
HK$5,713,000 (2020: HK$3,800,000) and total unrealised fair value loss
of HK$10,701,000 (2020: fair value gain of HK$4,091,000). Please refer
to note 14 for further details.

Shanghai property is a 3-storey industrial building located in 188
Xinjunhuan Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

Liaoning property is an industrial development complex with 4 industrial
buildings located in Taoci Industrial Zone, Qigong Community, Wan Shou
Street, Jianping County, Chaoyang City, Liaoning Province, the PRC.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board is of the view that reasonable and effective use of temporary
idle funds will better utilise the idle resources and enhance the overall
capital gain of the Group. The investments were made for treasury
management purpose with a view to increasing the return on the
unutilised funds of the Group and generating better investment return to
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole after taking into account,
among others, the level of risk and return on investment. Prior to making
such investments, the Group had ensured that there remains sufficient
working capital for the Group’s business needs, operating activities and
capital expenditures even after making the investments. The Board
considers that they are conservative investments with a satisfactory
expected return, acceptable risk and high liquidity, are in line with the
internal risk management and treasury management of the Group,
and have not caused any adverse impact on the working capital of the
Group. As part of its treasury management, the Group has been closely
monitoring the performance of the investments and its cash flow position.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 98 (2020: 103)
employees (excluding employees of the Company’s associates) in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The employees are remunerated with basic salary,
bonus and other benefits in kind with reference to industry practice and
their individual performance. The Group offers induction trainings to new
employees and gives regular trainings to existing employees for updating
their skills and knowledge.

A share option scheme was adopted on 29 July 2016. As at 31 December
2020, a total outstanding number of share options were granted to the
eligible employees, including the Directors, amounted to 1,983,333
which were all lapsed upon expiry on 29 July 2021. Details of the share
options granted are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8
December 2016. For further information in relation to the options granted,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere on this report, the Group did not have any
significant events after the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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UPDATE ON USE OF PROCEED IN RELATION
TO FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 30 December
2019 and 31 March 2020 in relation to placing of new shares under
general mandate and change in use of proceeds from the placing
(collectively refer as to “Announcements”), the 2020 interim report dated
26 August 2020 and the 2021 interim report dated 25 August 2021.
Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used herein shall bear the
same meanings as those defined in the Announcements. Part of the
net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from placing were applied up to 31
December 2021 and are intended to be applied in accordance with the
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revised proposed application set out in the Announcements. The below
table sets out the details of the application of the Net Proceeds:

3

RIS
Actual Unutilised
Actual use of Net ~ amount of Net
Total use of Net Proceeds Proceeds Expected
revised planned  Proceeds as at as at as at timeline
use of Net 1January 31 December 31 December for the
Proceeds 2021 2021 2021 intended use
i 2 ZEZ-F
—TZ-fF +ZA +=H
FR{SFRIE —B—HB#f =+—B# =+—8#K
BEREET  FBNESRE FRNIERHE  FEREEE RERRN
HEIRRALE BRAR BERAE RBREE AR R
(HK$' million)  (HK$' million) ~ (HK$’ million)  (HK$’ million)
(BEET) (BBAT) (BEET) (BEAT)
Improving and enhancing the existing WERIEF B mRIE 31 December
production lines for Food Additives Business ~ %% ELER 47 - - 4.7 2022
S
+-BA=+-H
Working capital of the Food Additives Business B @RAMEILHKHNEESS 63 6.3) - - -
Purchasing the medical, health and hygiene ~ BB REGREK
products for trading purpose BEEREEZRE 150 (15.0) - - -
General Working Capital of the Group FEEN—REEES 6.2 (6.2) - - -
322 (27.5) - 4.7

Due to the continuous outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic which
disrupted the Food Additives Business, there has been a delay in
the application of the unutilised proceeds allocated to improving and
enhancing the existing production lines for Food Additives Business to 31
December 2022. The remaining unutilised proceeds of HK$4.7 million
allocated to improving and enhancing the existing production lines for
Food Additives Business has been deposited into bank accounts in Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULT OF PROFIT GUARANTEES AFTER
ACQUISITION

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 29 July 2020
and 21 August 2020 in relation to acquisition of the entire issued shares in
Tripler involving issue of consideration shares under general mandate and
an announcement dated 3 September 2021 in relation to the fulfillment of
the profit guarantee for the year ended 31 December 2020.

According to an unaudited management account of Tripler for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the profit guarantee of not less than HK$6.5
million for the same period is met. However, as of the reporting date, the
actual financial results of Tripler for the same was still subject to potential
adjustments and finalisation of company level audit account of Tripler
by the Company’s auditor and therefore the actual result of the profit
guarantee might be different. An announcement will be further made to
update the development in due course when the relevant audit report of
Tripler is released.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is
pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
called “ESG”) report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year 2021"), with an aim to
provide details of the system establishment and performance of the Group
in terms of sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This report highlights the
environmental and social measures and activities of the Group during the
Year 2021. For information regarding the corporate governance section,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company is committed to creating sustained value for stakeholders
by implementing ESG management framework into its operation with an
aim to put the objectives of sustainable development into its daily practice.
To be accountable to all the stakeholders, the Company endeavoured to
minimise the influence on the environment, be aware of the employee
well-being and contribute more to the community.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board statement

The Board has a primary role in directing and overseeing sustainability
initiatives to ensure the effectiveness and relevance in light of the evolving
sustainability landscape. The Board is committed to incorporate ESG
mindset into the Company’s business operations and responsible for the
long-term sustainability of the Company, including formulating strategies
and overseeing the Company’s ESG-related risks and opportunities.

The Board has delegated the power of sustainability strategies
development and policies implementation to the management. The
management is responsible for executing projects, evaluating results,
monitoring potential risks and reporting on performance.

The Board considers ESG-related risks and opportunities as part of the
Company’s overall strategic formulation, and the significant ESG impact
caused by daily operations and businesses.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Management approach and strategies

To identify and control ESG-related risks, as part of an effective risk
management system, a mechanism for internal communication and
a reporting model are in place to keep the Board informed in a timely
manner. All sustainability-related risks and opportunities, which may have
a significant impact on the Group, are reported to the Board on an annual
basis.

Furthermore, a materiality assessment is conducted by the Company
annually for better understanding expectations and requirements of
different stakeholders on various ESG issues. The Company would ensure
all platforms and channels of communication are available to stakeholders.
Through these platforms and channels of communication, the Company
could gather feedbacks from its key stakeholders, which allows the
Company to address their concerns.

Progress review made against ESG-related goals and targets

ESG-related goals and targets have been set to provide a strategic direction
for all operations, the progress is closely reviewed by the Company from
time to time. Modification may be needed if the progress falls short of
expectation and/or change of business operations.

The Group's sustainability target enables the Company to develop a
realistic roadmap and focus on results of achieving the visions. The
sustainability performance and progress made against the goals are
reported annually to the Board for review.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report follows the four reporting principles as mentioned in the ESG
Reporting Guide:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment were
conducted annually to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been collected prudently.
Please refer to the environmental and social performance data for
standards and methodologies used for calculation of key performance
indicators.

Balance: An unbiased and balanced picture of the performance has been
disclosed in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data collection and
calculation methods have remained consistent throughout the years to
facilitate comparability over time.
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REPORTING BOUNDARIES ik & &6 E

The Group has been operating in four operating and reportable segments, S8 — B &iETIELSE K a] 23R 26 » B1FE()
including (i) provision of finance lease consulting services and financing R FARZE A RIME (THhE)) 12 EHE E:55
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"); (ii) investment — ARFSEFIEIRTS (N PEESHEB LB
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong, investments in securities and MR EBEERNEEFZEE ;(iHERE R
money lending business in Hong Kong; (iii) sale of medical, health, daily & HEREBEEER ; RiVIRTEZ 255N
necessities and hygiene products; and (iv) research and development, %~ ¥ &8 RELI R &R CH AT £ E KN
manufacturing and sale of food additives, new food ingredients and - ABEEBAEBMNE S LR LEEN
nutritional enhancers in the PRC. The report focuses on the operation — & ZEFSHNELRYHEFSEE

of Group at its principal places of business in Hong Kong, Beijing and

Liaoning.

The key performance indicators (“KPIs”) data are gathered only from the — BESEAEXISIE ((RASRAERGISIE)) SR ENAER
operations under the Group's direct operational control. The Group will — EHFEEITH FRIEFSIE - REBE R &R
continue to strengthen information of the major ESG aspects in order to ~ T=EIEIE - HEREAHENERD LI ERR
enhance the disclosure of information on sustainable development when 1858 EE A RA R B ENER

and where applicable.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT Bh&azH

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating FEHAENZEKE|TIBIE LT EHRIE REARE
environmental and social strategy, defining the Group’s objectives, BB :HMEEEUREICEREMEE K
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. The Group’s key &EBENFEFHECEBF KRR -TH -EE-
stakeholders include government, shareholders, customers, employees, HERSIRISIEHE HER AR AEEDE
suppliers or service providers, community and the public. The Group  1THRE  EiFHEHIUER  UTHREREZ R
has conducted a survey, discussed or communicated with stakeholders 7> EIfEE EE R HIY » sHE R BEFIH B E
to understand their views and respond to their needs and expectations, AEERIREZERNELRT  TRARIAE
evaluated and prioritised their inputs to improve the Group’s performance, D& EIEBEE

and finally strived to provide value to the stakeholders.

3 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB Mg KBRS
e S e "W, S el Wl T3 Bt * S B P STl Wy A oM m - wn
Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
& HZREXR BB K [ClFE
Government o Operate in compliance with the law ° Law-abiding operations
T RS A
° Tax payment in accordance with the laws e Tax payment on time and in full
HBOEANIR FERFREANTR
Shareholders o Implement corporate governance and ° Optimise internal control and risk
create value management
[ BITREEATLAISEE BEAEPEFRREEIE
o Information disclosure ° Release operating data in due course
ERIKE B A SHE
Customers o Demand for funds o A wide range of financial leasing products
eSS HEEHNFEKR ENREREERD
° Direct communication ° D|rect hotline
BRER HEHAR
o Food safety o Fulfil the requirements of ISO 22000:2005
BmZE EHEFFEIS0 22000 : 200547 7E
o Guarantee product quality ° Optimise the quality management control
EmBERE B CE SRS
Employees ° Career development platform ° Transparent promotion channel
=1 EERRETE HRNSHERE

° Remuneration and benefits
EadiysE =yl
° Occupational health and safety

BEEERZE

° Competitive remuneration package
B8 YL nil DS

° Implement health and safety management
system
BiiRERZ2EIERR
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
Fin& HZREXR BB K [ClFE
Suppliers or service o Receive payment on time o Payment schedule
providers T B U ERAS =R NEIEEl
R ARSI At o Business ethics and credit standing . Fulfilment of obligations under any contract
EEEEREESE in accordance with laws

REBITERNSHE TSR

Community and the ° Open up a financing channel for small ° Provide sale and leaseback
public and medium-sized enterprises REEREIHE
HERAR F/ N ERERE e Adhere to green operations
e Protect the nature BFREEEE
REBA

Based on the stakeholder engagement, the Group has identified issues ~ ERIEFNERE KERDHPIEEEAIEER
with significant environmental and social impact and issues concerning & EMEIBERIFHEMIANEE-
stakeholders.

MATERIALITY MATRIX EEMERE

In the Year 2021, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a RIE-—FE > ZAEFHZERE - HETAE
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial to the A BEETEEMW G LERRIBAEF XSS
Group’s business and were of the utmost concern to stakeholders. It helps ~BEERIFNERBITNEH - LML BBIAER
the Group to ensure its business development can meet the expectations ~ FEREEFE LRI SFDENHIEREK A
and requirements of stakeholders. The Group has identified 22 ESG ~HEEE#MA22IERHEIRE & A= ENIRE
issues covering environmental, social and operation, and has invited both & REAEE > WiEERNERINBFNEFB
internal and external stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG 5P LEKE: s HMEBIE - HEEELAEEN
issues through a scoring tool and interviews. The Group’s management FE - AEEEEEEEWIRE - HEREA
has reviewed the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then SEENEZMUHRR HBERARENKBELER -
disclosed the results in this report. The results of materiality assessment BEEMHENERELZEBITNENERLE
prioritised stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material ~ ZNEEZEE{TE Tt RBENEE S E -
aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.

3 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year 2021 —EFEAEERIE HEAEAREENE
EMEAERE
High
%—
10
14
9 - —
High Priority 16 13
- s B R
8 15 20
= 7 @ 22
2 19
AT 6 ° o’ ()
58 21 11 19
ot 5 5
f S
glj 5 4 843
By & 2
8
e 3
<3 12 4
a 1
@ 2 [ )
w
1 () / (]
6 9 10 5
OO 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Importance of topics to business Hl:%h
HEFEENHE =
Environmental issues Social issues Operation issues
RESRTE HEEE SEEE
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement 17.  Economic value generated
mERARHIR =hukad e FrEE KB EE
2. Energy consumption 10.  Community investment 18. Corporate governance
AETRUBFE HERE rEER
3. Water consumption 11.  Occupational health and safety 19. Anti-corruption
Rk EEREREZS RES
4, Waste 12, Labour standards in supply chain 20.  Supply chain management
B HESE R ES TIR4E HEEEE IR
B. Environmental impact of construction 13.  Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
M THIRIENFE HEil k&R BERWRE
6. Green buildings certification 14.  Employee welfare 22.  Customer privacy
ARG EEmRF EGSPN
7. Customer engagement in 15. Inclusion and equal opportunities
environmental issues BAEKREEERS
ERHIRIEEFHNZMH 16. Talent attraction and retention
8. Use of chemicals W40 Re ¥ BB A\ A
fﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ:%ﬂlﬂ
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EMISSIONS BER 4

Emissions refer to air and greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions, HERMIEEERABEREE CREREE) H-m
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-  7KETHEHES AEREERFEY)Z EL
hazardous waste.

Combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the Group is the main AN E B ZEHI S EIRIEN IR 22 81LEY
sources of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate  (NOx) ~ i E¥)(SOx) RS HL F(PM)BERYIRY 3=
matter (PM) emission. It could likewise generate GHG such as carbon B HEPISE® E 4 — E{EAK(CO) ~ FR
dioxide (COz), methane and nitrous oxide. M—EERERERAE

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s emissions in -~ IR - —FE » KEB YN RRIRIEEN

the Year 2021 are shown in the table below: FERREFIN TR
Unit Year 2021 Year 2020
Environmental indicators RIRIRE B “EFE —TTHE
Air emissions ote ) ngﬁ}jtm (Htat1)
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions FEIEYINOOBER YD g5 11,404 10,248
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emissions BRE1E¥(SONBER Y g5 240 263
Particulate matter (PM) emissions SRR F(PM)BERY) g% 898 757
Note 1:  The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SOx and PM are sourced from: (i) Af5£1. FFsHENOx~ SOXERPMAIHER A FIGRR ()& B
the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department's (“EPD”) EMFAC-HK Vehicle IRIFREE (RRE)) WEMFAC-HK S BT EIE
Emission Calculation model; and (i) the United States Environmental Protection A (i E BB RIRIE (R B T HE S A e i —
Agency’s Vehicle Emission Modeling Software — MOBILE6.1. The assumption of 80% MOBILE6.1 * {5 A ¥R E80% ~ R EHE 25 ~ 735
relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius, an average speed of 30kmh, FERE/)\RB0A B 2 BRI TEHRMER B E

and include running exhaust emissions only.

To better manage the Group's material topics and its performance on ABFMEEAERNEZELETIRIES
environmental aspect, the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for ERMRR > ZAEBREZEHE_S_MNF+_
air emissions over the year ending 31 December 2024 (“Year 2024") as A=+—BI-FEE (ZE-MEE)) BERSIHMN

follows: SCERUWT

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status
IRIRIEIR HEE AR BEFE AR A&

NOx emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
NOHFHE E — T NEERTRD3% —E-NEFE EITH
SOx emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
SOFEREE “ZETMFEERIR/3% “Z2NEFE EITH
PM emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
PMEFREE — T NEERTRD3% “ZE-NEFE EITH

The Group will continue to work for the target sets and review the status ~ ANEEFESBIZRTEE > TR S _NE
annually prior to Year 2024. ERIEFERETARAER

3 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The Group believes that green transportation brings benefits, which
include reduction of transportation costs and reduction of energy
consumption and pollution. As such, the Group encourages optimising
transportation routes, high filling rate or carpooling and proper tire
pressure to achieve efficiency.

The Group reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their
commuting decisions to reduce air and greenhouse emissions. Employees
are encouraged to take public transportation as often as possible and
select fuel efficient vehicles. While employees are driving, it is suggested to
avoid unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, close windows when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

Electricity consumption of the Group is a major part of its GHG emissions.
Various electricity-saving policies have been established to reduce the
electricity consumption by the Group. The Group encourages staff
members to switch off light during daytime, maintain lamps well to keep
clean, use stairs instead of elevators, install energy-efficient lighting,
and disable the standby mode for all electrical appliances, including
computers, photocopiers and printers when they are not in use. Air
conditioning is required to be set no lower than 25 °C in summer. It
is also required to ensure the windows and doors are closed while air-
conditioning is on, and turn off the air-conditioning after office hours or
after the usage of the meeting room.

In the Group’s Liaoning and Beijing offices, energy saving signs remind
staff members to turn off the lights and promote energy conservation. In
the Hong Kong office, light-emitting diode (“LED”) lamps were installed as
much as possible, and multi-purpose devices with printing, scanning and
photocopying functions were adopted to achieve electrical efficiency.

In order to address indirect emissions relating to paper waste deposited at
landfills, the Group encourages employees to apply computer technology
such as emails, electronic backup devices and storage devices to reduce
paper consumption, print on both sides of a sheet of paper, avoid
unnecessary printing or copying on paper, adjust documents and use
space efficiency formats to optimise use of paper, and put recycling boxes
near the photocopiers to collect single-sided paper for reuse and used
double-sided paper for recycling.
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In the Group’s Beijing office, saving paper signs remind staff members ~ EAREEILRIMAT » IR ARIZHIZEERES
to optimise use of paper and reduce paper waste. The Group constantly — 1B{CARIREE R MR MARSRIR & o N EE R S 1ZEE
reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their commuting  BEE@HFRFEBIRIZFE B/ D ERKEER
decisions to reduce air and GHG emissions. Employees are encouraged — BEHEE IS ENMREROISEFN B AR ER
to take public transportation as often as possible and select fuel-efficient ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂxﬁl?mﬂ’] BT R oANREREZE
vehicles. While employees are driving, it is recommended to avoid {ESREERBE G M ENMNFRERIR 11578 TEL
unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, keep windows closed when the  TRAG RIEF N ERF AL

vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is

necessary.

The Group recognises the severity of indirect GHG emissions from AEBBBEHRESIINEABRESAEBIFEAER
business travel by employees, and requires employees to utilise BEHER T ERKEESFEABELHMIEEINT
teleconference instead of overseas meetings and choose railway rather 5% J23R1TIRE R BER M IEMRAL - LUR/ DIMNE A
than airway for short distance travel to reduce the carbon footprint of B ZHkEMe

business travel.

The Group requires that discharges, if any, into waterways and land must <& B E KA E K T tBER 2 55224 Gna)
comply with relevant laws and regulations. BT EHEAR AR

The Environmental Policy established by the Group encourages Z~&EESITENIRRBEREEN RS LB E MIRF
employees to handle office waste generated in a proper and BISRERIBFAEL Z I ABEEY)
environmentally friendly manner.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations. There was B EEEEYIERFIRAIFIRES - ENAEFE
no significant hazardous waste generated in view of the Group's business M E » WHEL AEEZEEY) -
nature.

The Group promotes waste reduction practices including waste reduction ~ ANEEEIREREE £17 > QIR RERE - B
at source, reuse, clean recycling, recover and reduction of disposal at — FB & 21EIEAFE ~ EIW R R/ MEIBERIS o A
landfills. Employees are encouraged to purchase supplies or equipment lﬁi%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%iﬁ?%ZfﬁﬁguuZ}Zaﬂ% 7
with longer life-span, to install recycling bins to collect recyclables, such as  #EEUAUNERTEIBYIR QESAR ~ IR IR 152
waste paper, glass or aluminium bottles, metal, and plastics, and to have  #fi~ 2B &K » W ZHEIRE IR E AT B IRY)

recyclers to collect recyclables. #lo

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure  ANEEERISIRE HEENEE  RETEHIB(F
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to R 524 HE A RIMBISR K ith 5 52 K & R o it
environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In the Year 2021, there T _—FE > {HEREER(TEARLMEA
was no case of material non-compliance with the Environmental Protection  IZ151R:%:% ) KRB RAER A AT RAEHN ~ Ak
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FZEAREMBEIRIEREL)) BRETIHBBUCSYUAREEHIRIGEMREK
and other relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions, E’?«éﬁE’JEE&EEWQWE’JET@@E@‘E@&E
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-  RMfT AN R —FE R WERE
hazardous waste that have a significant impact on environment. In  RABBDAR R EZIRMIBERE XN HIZ R
addition, there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of ~ £e

non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2021.
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The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s GHG

REB-—FE FEERERERIIBIRERIR

emissions in the Year 2021 are shown in the table below:

IBERGEREIIIN TR

Unit Year 2021 Year 2020
Environmental indicators IRIBISIE =X} —E—FE —EEFE
GHG emissions BERBHER
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Bz EE1) kg COze 42,002 61,721
Fr_fthhES
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) ¢ EEHE @EE2) MEY kg COze 487,170 808,083
Fr_&athEE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) HAitE = HER #EB) kg COze 17,541 13,287
Fr_atREE
Total GHG emissions o2 BER PN S ) kg COze 546,713 883,091
Fr-atREE
GHG emissions intensity BERBHNEE kg COze 12 43
(per unit produced)
Fr_athiE=
(BEEEEMN
Waste EEEY
Total non-hazardous waste produced FTELEEREEYES kg 2,400 1,010
Fx
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ FREE EEEFEYZE kg 0.004 0.049
(per unit produced)
Fx
(EEEBN)
Total hazardous waste produced e FTELBEEEYRE W kg N/A N/A
T ERA EA
Hazardous waste produced intensity MESBEBEENEE kg N/A N/A
(per unit produced) FEA TEA
Fre
(BEESN)
Note I:  The national emission factors for Liaoning and Beijing are set at 0.6101 kg CO2/  ffs#]l . EERILRBERAMNBERIENEAFREA0.6101T %

kWh, which are sourced from The Ministry of Ecology and Environment of People’s
Republic of China (2019). In addition, the emission factor for Hong Kong based
operations is set at 0.71 kg CO2/kWh, which is sourced from Hong Kong Electric
Sustainability Report 2020.

Note 2: GHG emissions (direct and indirect) and its removal can be divided into the following

three separate areas:

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the
Group including combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the
Group.

Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions resulting from generation of purchased electricity
that is consumed by the Group’s including the controlled equipment or its
operations within the physical building boundary for electricity purchased
from power companies.

Scope 3: All other indirect GHG emissions that occurred outside the Group, including
both upstream and downstream emissions including: (i) GHG emissions
due to electricity used for fresh water/sewage processing by the Water
Services Department/Drainage Services Department respectively; and (ii)
business travel by employees.

ZEIER TFRE TR E P EAREMELRER
IHE (CE—NE) b EBEFEEERANTIR
EFREATIFR_EEHFTRE TyREBE

OB RS
Biz2: BERMHR EERER REARTHANTE
BB 14008 -
WEL AR I E R N
BERMAH IEAEELZH S ER
e
BE2 . AEEZHNREIERERRENRR
REFEETAREARMENENY
PN BB/ A MO o
WES: ASELUN LT SRR

HERC BUE LR TR BOBERR (BUHE (KT
B/ RBENRERBNERERK 5K
FREERAZERBESINE ; Ri)EENTH
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Note 3: No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore, such disclosure is not M523 . ZAEENEESEEEEEY) AL ZIWBEABAR

applicable to the Group. In the event when any hazardous waste is to be disposed of, KEE - WHERRETAEZEEY FEETES
the Group would engage professional companies to handle it. E /NS

In accordance with policies stated above for the reduction of air and & _E#EER > AR/ D EWMER KR EREHER
GHG emissions from vehicles, the Group adopts the following measures: — Z<EEEIREVL N EM () HI4EE ER RIER
(i) control the numbers of vehicles owned by the Group; (i) control the (8 ;(iHEEEERTALAHEIET B FIASE
frequency of employees not to take public transportation for local business = ; K(ifESIEENHES

commuting; and (iii) control the volume of business travel by employees.

Non-hazardous wastes are preferred to be recycled, otherwise, they are  EZERFEME L LIWF A > B E T HIE
sent for landfill or incineration. In accordance with policies stated above — B3GR 3% FHEES » AR/ D EEZEREEERY) > &
for the reduction of non-hazardous wastes, the Group adopts the following ~ SEBEREUL TR (TG EEELNHER S
measures: (i) control the commercial wastes generated by employees; (i) #7 ;(DEEHIATRRE ;5 KiiEHIEZEEHIED
control the waste of papers; and (iii) control the volume of non-hazardous &M NEITEIN A EEESEYSHE o

waste going direct to landfill or incineration without recycling.

To better manage the Group’s material topics and its performance on ABIFMEIBEAEBENE NZEELETIRES
environmental aspect, the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for EMIRF > FEEREDSE_E_NMEERER

GHG emissions over Year 2024 as follows: BN EEERUT .

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status
IRIBIEIR WHEE AR BEFE AREE

GHG emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
RERBIREE Z“ETMEERDAL3% “E-NEFE T
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
FIEXBREEEYRE “ETOFEERDRL3% —E—hEE EITH
Hazardous waste produced intensity Maintain zero generation Year 2019 In progress
FIEXBEREERE WIETEL “E-NEFE T
The Group will continue to work for the target sets and review the status ~ ANEEGEEABIZRTELE ) W S _UF
annually prior to Year 2024, ERIEFERETARAE

USE OF RESOURCES BRER

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources, including energy, ANEBFHNREE #F BH 2T BFRME
water and other raw materials, in production, storage, transportation, ZEHEAMERER (BIEER K REMEM
buildings, electronic equipment, etc., is one of the significant aspects to  #}) ¥R EIBIE ERIEE -

protect environment.

The Group established policies and procedures to reduce energy ZANEEBHIEEBEERIZF R BIEACRHE 57
consumption in the facility, to assess the energy efficiency, to increase  {HAEIR & > T 0J BEXE MNE B RAEIR 511 B
the use of clean energy, if possible, to set targets to monitor energy  1ZEAERAETRNFE  FERRIBA N BERAR 2 FE
consumption, to ensure power is turned off when electrical appliances are 7 BRI T/ERFFER EAM

not in use, and to admit natural daylight into workplace during the day.

4 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The Group requires employees to reduce water consumption in the
offices. For example, employees are encouraged to fully empty any
containers before washing, to turn off water taps promptly, to check
faucets and pipes for leaks, and to adopt water saving appliances.

The total units of energy and water consumed by the Group and the
amount of total packaging material used for finished products in the Year
2021 are shown in the table below:

FEBEBERESTEWAZEAL KON A&
E S RESINERAARA AN REFRIR
IKBERR IR E K BETR M B8 R > W ER A R KGR
e

R ZET—FE NEBPTFEAERRIKMEEL
R plianPi R BT BB B TR

Unit Year 2021 Year 2020

Total use of resources BRERRE B “EFE ZEITFE

Purchased electricity consumed FRiEREEMNE N kWh 796,411 859,634
TRE

Petrol consumed e FTHE R M) kwh 158,097 173,512
TR

Total energy consumed FEREIES KWh 954,508 1,033,146
FRE

Energy consumption intensity FEERE kWh 21 50
(per unit produced)
FREF
(BEEBNMW

Natural gas consumed FTEERRAR m3 118,066 123,489
AHK

Natural gas consumption intensity FTERERAREE m3 3 6
(per unit produced)
RPN
(BEEBNMW

Water consumption FEK m3 3,381 391
AHK

Water consumption intensity FEREE m3 0.074 0.019
(per unit produced)
RPN
(BEEBNMW

Total packaging material (paper) S RFTAEEMN () 42 kg 3,770 3716
used for finished products =2 Fre

Total packaging material (plastic) ST BEME (R kg 3,950 3,880
used for finished products mE Fr

Packaging material (paper) SHESNSEME @) kg 0.083 0.1794
used per unit produced T

Packaging material (plastic) SHEMNSEMN (B kg 0.087 0.1873
used per unit produced Fx

Note 1:  The conversion factor used to convert data in other units to kWh is sourced from the  fifa£1 . AR EMEMI I EIRESIAA T RFAVEIREF
ThiR B B A R B MRV AE AT T it

Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy Agency.
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The Group’s ability to use energy efficiently can be revealed by its  ZSEEE A XH B AEIRAVEE I BT LI B E (K AE
intention and measures for the reductions in energy consumption. Energy  JESHFERIEBFIEFAZREEIR - fERHIEEIZ T
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the — ZEZAREEAVIRIE BN BE A KRERS T AR
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. fluctuations — (BIENAE TR FE R BAR AR EN) o ANEEE $H¥TAE
in energy supply and prices). The Group’s policies and measures specific  JR{EFA BB SEANIEH B > it c AE&EH
to managing energy use have been stated above. The Group considers FRAN T - —FEBEHMNZZEERY B
such policies had been adopted and measures had been achieved for the & e

Year 2021.

The Group's ability to use water efficiently can be revealed by its  Z<EEEAXFIF/KRIBE B LIBBE R/ AKX
intention and measures for the reductions in water consumption. Water ~ EMEENIEIRIEIR FEKEEEFEREH
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the — BIIRIEEWN B A4S R E ER A T AR (U0 - 1k
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. reliance 52 R]AERE AR IR S IHAE MW R A SR AI7K
on sources of water that may be considered sensitive due to their relative R ; SRERIBEAZEEN SEIHBIRIAGCHZ
size or function; or status as a possibly rare, threatened, or endangered — #RUARES ; SNEHAIAE T E—45E JAGEEYL)
system; or to their possible support of a particular endangered species of ~ E1¥)) o

plant or animal).

During the Year 2021, the Group has not experienced any difficulty in R _—FE » RNEREREBE S AEEFEA
sourcing water that is fit for the usage of the Group. BYZKCIR TS A S B AR T (] R B o

The Group's policies and measures regarding to use of water and AEEABAKEBEMNBEREREE X
electricity are stated below: Eajn

Resources saving measure  Description and the result of measures

BIRENE AT It i 2t e 4

Energy saving Variable-frequency drives are installed on some of the machineries that do not need to be run at
full speed, such installation can reduce energy consumption and energy costs.

EfigE SRR RN ETERDFREFIMES L R/ Ve REFER SR A o

Water saving Open recirculating system is installed in Liaoning’s factory in order to absorb process heat from

machineries. This system uses the same water over and over again, it can reduce electricity
consumption for water processing.

BAY K BB T R BRI MVBIR R4 LR INE £ HEGE - Z AR R EBFERBRNK IR
DK ERIBIBIZ R E JHFE
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To better manage the Group’s material topics and its performance on
environmental aspect, the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for use
of resources over the Year 2024 as follows:

AHEEMEEAERENERZERATERIES
HRRR ZEFRERE S _NFEERME
FBREEERImT

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status
IRIZIGIE AHEE AR HEFE AR EE
Energy consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
FEERE ZETMFEERDRL3% “ZE-NEFE EITH
Natural gas consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
FRIfEA ARG B E “ETMEERDRL3% “ZE2-NEFE EITH
Water consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
BKREE ZETMEERDRL3% “ZE-NEFE EITH

The Group will continue to work for the target sets and review the status
annually prior to Year 2024.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Policies are established to consider
the actual impacts on environment and natural resources and to reduce
such impacts. The Group encourages environmental education and
advocacy among employees to motivate environmentally responsible
behaviour which helps fulfil the Group’s commitment to minimising its
adverse impacts on the environment.

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste production and disposal, and use of resources impacts the
environment, the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts,
and communicate the Group’s environmental policies, measures,
performance, and achievements to the stakeholders. No significant impact
on the environment and natural resources was caused in view of the
Group’s business nature. Policies and/or measures adopted specific to
managing potential impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources are mentioned above.

AEEREESERRTES ) WN T F
ERIESFIRETIRRS o

RIERBARIR

REER RV SERREREBAE R TE
ERIEHRE BHRERBRBERZBERTZE
RANIREER & - AEBBEIRIEH B RAES
RELHESHIREEEZ1TR BEMIREITE
EEEERVENRIGENB AR E 2 &GE

AEBPEQEERIN BERYEERGREURE
RERHENRREHIREENTE AEEE
HEBERFER/ME WA NEFEREEREN
IRIBER ¥ R AT - BN AN BRI
BlEE UEREMHIRERBRAERNERT
B HWERHIRIBN B AT RGN EEEEN
TEENZ BRI K, SIETRE RS £ SR

Annual Report 2021
TE—FER



I ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B A& RE RS

I e e = S T e ™ X~ ™. ; § .. .

CLIMATE CHANGE RIEEAE

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (the “TCFD”) provides — RZMERARI #5IRE T/E/N4E (TTCFD ) A AT
a reporting framework for companies to report their climate-related risks 3D & IR & H KIZ R A PRIZ (IR SHEZ o
to the stakeholders. TCFD divided climate-related risks into physical risks ~ TCFDiF R EAEREE & B9 72 B 5SS K i@ &
and transition risks, the physical impacts of climate change and transition & > AR RIES CBIER KB E R
risks brought by decarbonisation could have material impact to the [EAIAERAERNEERBRBIENEAT E X
Group’s operation and development. The Group has raised its awareness B B B RRZE b4 R E BB R AR
towards the risks and potential impacts on the Group due to climate EEEEIRSEH - AERCDHPI D AER
change. The Group has identified the climate-related risks that may 28K 3EEE AN E EM R EABRIERE
adversely impact the Group’s operations and development.

The Group understands that the climate change has posed existential ~ZAEEBIAREESCEHH R R EEESERE
threats to the world and its operation, and the Group must put effective  FEE > MAERBFRNA RIS RELESES
measures in place to protect its operations from potential disruptions S HILSABEETERIEE -AREKREIER
and damages caused by them. Such risks include physical risks such — FEEENE /7185 BAE i HEIRMU R ETET
as typhoon and rainstorms potentially leading to loss of electrical power, BIBSEZ BREEREEM » LURERLREEEL
property and machinery damage and staff casualty as well as transition — Zi@EEE

risks such as policy and regulatory changes.

In response to these, the Group has created risk management system — AFEHIILERIE  AERDREIIAGEIERAG L
and procedures to identify, monitor and control climate change impacts. 2% » LU B ~ B R il AR B ML B2 22 o SRS
Particular measures to mitigate client change related impacts include =S EERN ZMN BFEIEIE O IR N0 R 4EE
the enhancement and well maintenance of building design and structure ~ EERG5T 4518 KB 1 LUILRIRETiE X T
and facilities therein to strengthen endurance against extreme weathers.  f5/7 AREE IR A A X (B1ETE TiRiE
Emergency plans including flexibility of working hour and location under — X& F L{ERFRI BT EIL) MR RER
certain extreme weathers are also in place to maintain the Group's day-to- ~ BYHE=E » LUR/ D B T @S EnE kg
day operation in order and reduce risks of staff injuries when commuting.

The Group is also concerned about the exposure to relevant regulatory  ZAEEJIRTERMEERENERE  AIfcZRE
requirement that would have potential cost implications or disruption of — FFRYEEBEREMEABEESREMELE
operation due to failure to meet them by the then practices of operations.  TER{ZS S 228l &IE i o MBS E IRHING &R
Failure to comply with those limits would lead to a fine and or even SiF EEGSEFEE KR -AEERE
an order to suspend the operation for a certain period. The Group will  HAf& s AERAEY SR B 30 1 5T L ¥ 2B R B R &7
regularly review relevant policy updates and assess their potential impact 22> 3t I E ABRAFESHE AL UBES B/ g

on the operation and stipulate relevant responsive measures to mitigate

the potential risks.

4 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group established Staff Handbook covering topics such as: (i)
compensation and dismissal; (ii) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working
hours; (iv) rest periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-
discrimination; and (viii) other benefits and welfare.

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain talented
staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed periodically to
ensure consistency with employment market. Laws and regulations on
minimum wage and statutory social benefits are required to be followed.
Dismissal is required to comply with employment laws and regulations,
and to follow the internal policies and procedures, including policy on
prevention of dismissal purely on employees’ gender, marital status,
disability, or family status.

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent recruitment
strategy. Recruitment process includes application for recruitment,
description of position, collection of job applications, interview, selection,
approval, and job offering. Promotion is required to be based on
performance and suitability.

Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare, including
social security benefits and mandatory provident fund, are required to be
in compliance with employment or labour laws and regulations. Selected
benefit programs, including medical coverage, are also provided.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours to
provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles of equality
and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration, promotion, and
benefits are required to be handled based on objective assessment, equal
opportunity and non-discrimination regardless of gender, race, or other
measures of diversity.

RS A E R EIE
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BEREILER

FAEFECHEETFM WEZEGN ()Fr B
Fef#te s (IMBES R & 7t 5 (i) TARRF 2L 5 (VIRAR 5(v)
TEHEEE ;(WZ Tt S ViDRIEAR ; Kl E 58S
Fe@ille

REBIREERE I ZHM ARSI RIRBES
BT EmsTHM TS BREARRBEHS—
B BERETAMREIEREAELERAN A
BROER  WIZRRBRERROER R A EBER
KizFHEET SRR E RS MR 4§
IR~ PR S EICO U AR B R T 2 R ©

FREBRLIAT BIERIBAZIREBREEIRSIA
7 o {RESIEF ELAE RS RS ~ H L« ISR
BFPEE  Eal  BRE S HUE RIS o EFHERUR
K E SR

BEZ TIERE - R FEKEN (BELER
RN aRIEAES) AN G ERES TER
KER A EETMR M ERBERFRRERNEE
Bt

FEERESRHEFSN LK S - AEELES
PHEEREATZ TIHRIR BT AFRRIEAR
[RA1EES  FrB ~ BT RABN R EN R
i PERE RN RIRAR > ARl ik
HEMZBTTIEER
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The composition of the Group’s workforce by gender, employment type, &HE_ZE_—F+_A=+—H > KEBIL%
age group and geographical region as of 31 December 2021 is stated as I/~ {B{E4ER. « 8 4ER R @D HEE 18
follows: BRIBRNT

WORKFORCE BY GENDER WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE
=R 5 REFELE S

Part time Z& 5
9%

Male
M
68%
Full time
ESi
91%
WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP WORKFORCE BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
RERENE S it E 8 5
Over 50 years old Under 30 years old
50 £ 30 AT Hong Kong
30% 19% 58

28%

PRC
F
30-50 years old 72%
30ZE505%
51%

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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During the Year 2021, the employee turnover rate of the Group by
categories is as follows:

RS A E R EIE

e S e "W, S el Wl T3 Bt * S B P STl Wy A oM m - wn

KB AR BRI EE ik
HET

Year 2021
Employee turnover rate by categories RS S ESRKRLEE —ECZ-FE
By gende’ Woie 1 I RIE o e
— Male —BM 13%
— Female — M 13%
By age group Mo ¥ 1R EB AR 5y a2
— Under 30 years old —30B AT 26%
- 30 - 50 years old —30&E505% 14%
— Over 50 years old —50m% A & 3%
By geographical region et i (& 2 WL
-PRC —r 15%
— Hong Kong —&58 7%
Note 1:  Employee turnover rate by categories is calculated by dividing the total number 321 . 3Z4BRIBI D HRE AR 2R RN ES

of employees departed in such category by the total number of employees in the
corresponding category.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
employment during the course of operation. In the Year 2021, there was
no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#E AR LM EEENE), the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FZEARHMESENEREE), the
Employment Ordinance ({21&15&41)) and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare on the Group. In addition, there was no
report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2021.

FEBBRREAEFHEE  DIRRINEER
REST A ERERNBER M T AR AR
RIE-—FE BEREER(TEARHM
B EE)  (PEARHKMBEFZESREE) « (B
BIFA) REFEENHEREE BELE
T TERE R FERE  Znib RIRAR
REth BN R A IR AR ROERRTT
Feltih R —FER - W REE KA
TERRGER MR E AR SR HIHBIR S
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HEALTH AND SAFETY BELEZSE

The Group has established Health and Safety Policies covering topics ~ZANEEBGIEREEST2BER S REZEMHIN ¢
such as: (i) providing safe working environment; (i) protecting employees (MRt Z 2 TIEIRIE ()REEREBREE LT
from occupational hazards; and (iii) work-life balance. The Group is & ; K(i){/EE Tk - NERR N AREIRMEE
committed to maintaining a healthy and safe workplace for employees, R&ZZ2MNIFIEELRERESRBGEENES
and to preventing workplace injuries and illnesses. B

The Group requires entities to establish and document policies and ~AEEERESBEGITERY|BREEET IR
procedures on safety for employees to follow, set targets for the safety of 2 EEREIERF I {EELEEIZ THHREBZL
employees, monitor the safety performance against the targets periodically ~ 2FRIERBEIZ WA SIEEERT M2 EH -
and report any safety incidents to management.

One of the key factors for successfully protecting employees from f(RIEEEHGHEUGECHEM—IBERINES
occupational hazards is to train employees to protect themselves from  AilifREFRER SRR OIERSBEET K&
psychological and physical hazards. The Group encourages such training  ESEIAESIR A RIS

to be delivered to employees.

During the Year 2021, the number and rate of work-related fatalites R ZZ-—FE > AT ABKRSETRUAR

occurred and the number of lost days due to work injury is as follows: TEELNTIEEENT ¢
Year 2021 Year 2020 Year 2019
Work-related fatalities occurred EIET —EC—FE _EITEE —E-hEE
Number of work-related fatalities AIETAH - - -
Work-related fatalities rate (%) EATHETR (%) - - -
Year 2021
Number of lost days due to work injury ~ BRI L{Ei8kIT{EHH ZEIFE
Lost days due to work injury RATHEEETEHE 25

In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 #t¥ —_ZT—H A ERHEZZ1E (TCOVID-19 )
(“COVID-19”) pandemic, the Group has taken certain actions to AV REBCHEE TITEMNBESE IR
strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in factory and  &&ES LR IFAZEIEER L 20 & E
offices in Liaoning, Beijing and Hong Kong to protect the health of its  LURFEREMNEEEE - BEE LREMATAEM
employees. Employees are required to wear surgical face masks in factory &M OS> Ih4h > AEE BN T ER IS
and office, apart from that, the Group has increased the frequency of ERHEHEER o

cleaning and sterilisation in working areas.

5 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to health
and safety during the course of operation. In the Year 2021, there was no
case of material non-compliance with the Regulations on Work-Related
Injury Insurance of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE A RHEAE
TE1RBRIEA)), the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance ({88
¥ 2R EEEEA)) and the relevant laws and regulations relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact. In addition, there was
no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2021.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has established Development and Training Policies covering
topics such as: (i) vocational training; and (ii) training and resources
for the directors and senior management. The Group is committed to
providing adequate training to the employees to improve their knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work. Training includes vocational
training courses provided internally or externally.

The Group requires employees to attend internal and external training
courses including employee continuing education to improve employees’

knowledge and skills for their job positions.

During the Year 2021, the percentage of employees trained is as follows:

RS A E R EIE
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FERBRREAEGHEE  URRINEER
TR EERZERMNER KM T AR
RAER-MNE-—FE TEREER(PE
ARHEME TEERER) « (BE L2 REREE
B R ER 2 2 TRRIERIRERE R Bz
EERRNARERREREAEAREZT
eltih R —FE WEFE RERDA
BEOERMBREA SR HIZAVER S

BRI

A5 B O HITE 3 R A IEHIBCR - REEE A
OBZEE ; RNEFRESREEBENIRE
R AERR OB RERMEMNEI ZFHESR
FRIT TARB B BRI Be b BE - s F 1N BB A S
ERmE IR IR2

FEBEZREESNMAINBE IR 5 REE
FHEHE  LIRFHE SR TR MR R AE

TR —FE - ZRIEEFDLEWT

Year 2021
Percentage of employees trained by categories RENSISNZIESEE AL T —FE
Percentage of employees trained ™ote ZiBE 7oL wED 53%
By gender (o2 e Rl I 4 2)
— Male —B 71%
— Female -4 29%
By employee category 2 B EfER & W)
— Senior level —=k 8%
— Middle level — 4R 19%
— Entry level — ¥R 73%
Note 1:  Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing the number of employees ~ Aif3£1 . ZHBREMN B D LIRS MNEIIRE A SRS

who took part in training by the number of employees.
Note 2: Breakdown for employees trained by categories is calculated by dividing the number
of employees trained in such category by the number of employees who took part in
training.

ANHETE

AR B DR IEE DB ZERZIIEE A
RIS MIEIEREABGTE

stz :
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Training and development courses are offered throughout the Group to  ANEBER SRR IR IR E BRI LURFHES
upgrade employee skills and knowledge. During the vyear, all directors — ZHAER A - FR > REEEEEBEEERE
participated in continuous professional development activities by reading &I, 2N A % 5550 B SR S HRIAVHA
regulatory updates, and/or attending seminars or workshops relevant to 5T EEETHE D EISER LS E T

the business or directors’ duties.

During the Year 2021, average training hours completed per employee is R ZE_—FE » SEE BT HZ RSN

as follows: T
Year 2021
Average training hours by categories 1ZEERIE 7 IS = HI RS2 T —FE
Average training hours per employege ete HE B =5l i g ) 1.1
Average training hours by gender Moe2) 4 B8 0 B39 5| B gy i)
— Male — B4 0.8
— Female —% 1.8
Average training hours by employee category Vo2 B EELEREI DT IR gy i)
— Senior level —= R 16
— Middle level — R 16
— Entry level — R 1.1
Note 1:  Average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing the total number of — Af3#] . S ERETFHZ IR IREZ IR HEUEE AR
training hours by the number of employees. T8

Note 2: Average training hours by categories is calculated by dividing the total number of — Afz22 . $248RIBID BT 5B 3252 48 548 2 5 |B 8
training hours for such category by the number of employees in the corresponding FRUUMEFESERBRE AT E
category.

5 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group has established Labour Standards Policies covering topics
such as: (i) preventing child and forced labour; and (i) preventing
workplace bullying. The Group is committed to avoiding child and forced
labour in the workplace. Besides, all employees are strongly encouraged
to report any bullying conduct they experience through the complaint
channel provided by the Group.

The Group prohibits child labour. It requires human resource department
and user departments work together to prevent or identify child labour,
and to ensure child labour is not in the workforce. The Group is committed
to protecting human rights, to prohibiting forced labours, and to creating a
workplace with respect, fairness, and free will for the employees.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating
to labour standards during the course of operation. In the Year 2021,
there was no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China ((ZEAREMELEE)), the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ((Z2 IEfERE TR
7E)), the Employment Ordinance ({(f@{&1£%)) and the relevant laws
and regulations relating to preventing child or forced labour that have
a significant impact. In addition, there was no report of significant fines
or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Year 2021.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply chain management is a key area of the Group’s business, which
includes managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
The Group requires suppliers to provide products and services for the
Group with up-to-standard quality, health and safety to ensure compliance
with environmental laws and regulations, and labour standards. The
contracting for procurement of products and services is required to be
based solely upon specification, quality, service, price, tendering, and
applicable environmental and social considerations.

RS A E R EIE
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5% T8

AEBEEHES TRERBER REZEGN ()
P E T Reagblss T 5 RK(iB LS HE - A5
B2 LIRSS LA E TR 5a 5 T o [F
By KX EREEERFEREHIKAR
BREREEENEREE TR

FERZIERET -HFEANERE AT
EBPIEVERA LSt RIE T o Y AR T EI5 P A
ET rEEBNREAE BIEAEHET 5
EEMEEREE A TRBENTIFRIE

FEBEAREAEBNEE  LRFRINEER
BRAETERS TERNBERKREMER KA
MM T —FE UERBER(PEARH
MEIEEE) (R ILERETRE)  (EREIFG)
DUR 820 1EE T 8 5a %5 TARRABY A RE =R &
FRUBERTEZ TR N R T —F
> RN R AR AR RO AR T AR
HERETRAAIHBIERS

HiEREE
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The Group requires impartial selection of suppliers and service providers, — Z~&EER E K EHFE R R RFSIRL RSN BEA
maximisation of competition in tendering process, approval of contract 1F° R AREZIBEIBZEZENHI M  BEHEL
terms, compliance with laws and regulations, prevention and detection {63 BBSFIAR AR » B L e BB AE R iR B8
of bribery or fraud in the tendering and procurement process, and  F2FFFRRIBRBREINGEITA » RIRHEFHRERE K
accomplishment of efficiency and cost saving in procurement. T A o

The Group established Supply Chain Management Policies, including — ZA<(E B &I SR  HE ()51 ;i)
(i) assessment; (i) selection; (iii) approval; (iv) procurement; and (v) Bk ;GiHh & ;(v)EREE ; R()RIBHE - RIRTE
performance evaluation. Performance evaluation is based on quality, —EEMNRE RIS WA BEERTEST-
service, cost, environmental protection, and social responsibilities.

During the Year 2021, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers T _—FE » NEEANB A T EMHE
had any significant actual and potential negative impact on business FEHEHEEE VIREFE Y AERS TERS/HEM
ethics, environmental protection, human rights and labour practices, nor ~ EABEREE AL IR EARES
any of them had any non-compliance incident in respect of human rights ~ ERIAEIERIE BN RS IRSE Mo

issues.

During the Year 2021, the number of suppliers by geographical region is T —FE » ightIB&igE| D EERS#HE

as follows: wmr

Year 2021
Geographical region IR ZEIFE
PRC P 47
Hong Kong BB 8
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY EmEE

Product responsibility refers to health and safety, advertising, labeling EmREET RFHARMERRFENEERZ S B
and privacy matters relating to services provided. The Group has &S BB AR EEE KNEBCHIEERSTH
established Product Responsibility Policies to study the overall and actual 55> Fi3S e R BIR B A& B ol 1522 R IX S
implementation of the Group's sustainable procurement activites and — SEENI BiEMEE R ATIMERE o

report directly to the director and company secretary.

The Group is fully responsible for its services and products. The Group ~AEEHHRERERE RS - SREBRRFTIE
ensures health and safety relating to the services provided and products — HABRARRFS RFTEEE RIRERZ 2t -
produced.

5 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The Group respects its customers’ rights and is committed to providing
accurate services and products information for customers in connection
with their purchase decision. The Group requires careful review of
advertising material to protect customers’ interest.

The Group is committed to protecting customer data and privacy
information and keeping business information confidential. Training to
employees in this regard and proper information system security are
required.

The Group attaches importance on protecting intellectual property rights
and has complied with all applicable legal requirements to prohibit
intellectual property infringement.

Although the Group ensures the quality of its services and products, at
the same time, the Group requires that services and products with quality,
safety, or health issues should be compensated in accordance with
terms of service and products contracts. Compensation is required to be
offered to all customers who are affected with consistent treatment and
procedures.

The Group’s trading business has a sales return policy whereby the
customers can lodge a complaint to the responsible sale person who
will get approval from the general manager for sales return due to minor
product defect in quality. Customers can submit complaint through social
media channel of the Group’s trading business where a post-sale service
staff will regularly respond and take follow-up actions for customers

enquiry.

During the Year 2021, the Group did not have any product recall for health
and safety reasons or receive any complaint on its service or product
quality from the customers.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance ((fAAE R} (FABS) 1&BI)) and other
applicable laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to
privacy matters in regard to products and services provided by the Group
in the Year 2021.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION k&5

The Group established Anti-Corruption Policies to prohibit employees from  ANEEEHIER BSEERZ HEEN BITEE
receiving any advantages offered by customers, suppliers, colleagues, or ~ FEEEUZ R A HFER « S Eth A TIRMEMN
other parties, while they are performing employee duties, and prohibit any — FlJ% > S22 | E(EEH KRR = @2e  BERG  BhZ X
activities involving conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, fraud, and money — FER A REEANES) - B T FMYIARERTEITA
laundering. Staff Handbook lays out the Group’s expectation and certain ~ SFEIAERIFERI RS TIE51E o

guiding provisions on code of conduct.

In Year 2021, The Group has provided anti-corruption education and RZZE-—FE > AEFCDEHAHESELKET
training materials to its directors and staff on a regular basis to raise their 12t EREHE KIFIMEl > LIRS R SHES
awareness towards ethical and corruption issues. e[S BRI R o

The Group encourages employees, customers, suppliers, or other parties ~ ANEBEHENIES 25 ~HEmEE M A TBR
to report incidents relating to any conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, ¥ RF)ZEETZE « BEER « #1232 - MEE RO B E2A0E
fraud and money laundering. Eo

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the  AEBRBRIREHERENEE  URENEESR
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to anti-  F2HETHEBNE SHER kS AR AR o
corruption during the course of operation. In the Year 2021, there was W _ZE-—FE > WERKEER (PEAREN
no case of any material non-compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competiton Bl F~IEE#RF%4) ~ (FhLEERBRIEH)) K BERE ~ #)
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FEARFEMBEIRFAEERHR T RFFAIAREERIER AR ERTAE
%)), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ((BFLEBBERIEBI ) and AFEBZITAH IV RITEZ—FE  K&ER
the relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and I HESX 418 KB AR R ARMTAMIBRE
money laundering that have a significant impact. In addition, there was no  KETFELHIELAIER S o

report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with

the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2021.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT HEKRE

The Group endeavours to support the communities in which the Group ~ ANEBRELIFAERLSEFIEHLE  BFEHE
operates including community engagement to understand the needs of 281> U TRHEEREE  BEAEBIESN &
communities, and to ensure the Group'’s activities take into consideration — fT&Fz o

of the communities’ interest.

The Group strives to enlarge the business operation so that the Group can ~ ZNEERHIBERERESE  UWEAEEEASE
hire more workers to utilize communities’ available labour resources. ST A HBHEBSTER

During the Year 2021, the Group was committed to serving the local R _E_—FE > NERM N FEBLELEH
community by participating in several community events. For instance, the ~ ESEEIRFEE MR « HIU > AEESNERZE
Group joined a community event organized by a charity group to dispatch ~ EIR2ERMIAH & 5S> (M5B RE R &R O
free face masks, hand sanitizer gels and other necessary consumables to &~ ETFRENE S UEEEIE

the underprivileged to fight against the pandemic.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in community ZAEEHEIEE2HEMEEE) L& BETT
activities, such as community health initiatives, sports, cultural activites, #7325 ~ X{5&8 SR T E R A 188 o A&
volunteer work, and education donation. All employees of the Group are ~ EFEIZEEESNFEFLE BHHESRIE
encouraged to participate in environmental protection activities and raise ~ fRE#

the environmental awareness of people in the communities.

5 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRETAW G

A e, W, S el (W D) B[ LB STl Wy A M me wt

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and safeguarding the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance accountability and transparency. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, except the
following deviations:—

1. Code Provision C.1.6 (previously A.6.7)

Code provision C.1.6 provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Goh Choo Hwee, a former independent non-
executive director of the Company, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting held on 11 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM”)
due to his other business commitments. As other Directors were
present at the 2021 AGM, the Board considers his absence did
not cause any prejudice to the communication with shareholders
of the Company.

2. Code Provision E.1.2 (previously B.1.2)

Code provision E.1.2 requires that the terms of reference of
Remuneration Committee should include, among others, to make
recommissions to the Board on senior management remuneration.
Currently, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
exclude review of and making recommendations to the Board in
relation to senior management remuneration as in the Board’s
opinion, it was more appropriate for the executive directors to
perform these duties.

3. Code Provision F.2.2 (previously E.1.2)

Under Code Provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the 2021 AGM
due to his other important commitment. Mr. Lai Ka Fai, executive
director chaired the 2021 AGM and was available to answer
the questions from the shareholders of the Company. As other
Directors were present at the 2021 AGM, the Board considers his
absence did not cause any prejudice to the communication with
shareholders of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS =E5g

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, one Non- ZBEZHRMAAZHAITES  —RIERTESK
Executive Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors — PU£IE373F#(TEE S (MBI IFRITEESS)) 4HRY °
(“INEDs”). The brief biographic details of and the relationship among ZBEEHEZHEREBMADHNELEES
Board members is set out in the Directors Profiles section on pages 77BZ&EBENA -EREERI=—EEEES
74 to 77. The Board has established three Board Committees, namely & EIEZEEE - RLEETAFNEE D -
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. BHZE_Z_—F+_HBA=+—HLIFE &FF
Attendance of the Board meetings, the meetings of the Board committees HER _ZE_—FB+—HRETNEES g
and the annual general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2021 #H -EEHECTHRREEFASNNHET
held on 11 June 2021 is set out below. The respective responsibilities of W F - EE G REFEEEE ANBE R4
the Board and Board Committees are discussed later in this report. ENHERBRIELRER

Number of meetings attended/number of meetings held

HE/ BTEENRY
Board Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EFE8E #ENZET RYLEEE  HFMEEE REKE

Executive Directors HITESR

Mr. Wong Lik Ping ITHFRE 217 01 072 01
Mr. Lai Ka Fai BERLE 717 11
Mr. Tao Ke (G 117 o1
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEELE 177 o1
Mr. Ng Tin Shui BXRERYE 377 01
Non-executive Director EHITES

Ms. Yip Man Vi Baleut 477 1

Independent non-executive Directors B JFHITES

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee REREE RE-_&

(resigned on 17 March 2022) =Bt+tHEF 6/7 33 1/1 212 01
Mr. Ho Hin Yip TR E 717 33 111 2/2 1/1
Mr. U Keng Tin REXLE 7 33 17
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David RERSE 27 17
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu BEFLERE2F

(appointed on 17 March 2022) ZATtBEEZM) 00 00 00 00 00

5 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory matters.
There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company in discharge of their
duties.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information on a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During 2021, Mr. Wong Lik Ping
served as the Chairman whereas Mr. Lai Ka Fai served as the CEO of the
Group. The Chairman provides leadership to management in respect of
operational issues. The CEO has overall chief executive responsibility for
the Group’s business development and day-to-day management generally.
The segregation ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the CEQ’s responsibility to
manage the Group's business on behalf of the Board in the operational
management of the Company. With the support of Executive Directors and
Company Secretaries, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive adequate
and reliable information in a timely manner.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEHITES

The Board has an non-executive Director, Ms. Yip Man Yi, who mainly ZEEGE—ZIENTESEHILL T HIES
oversees the Company and its business issues in a broad perspective. SRXEEABEZERAATKREFREE EL I
Ms. Yip was appointed as the non-executive Director on 17 October 2019 —ZE—HE+H++tHESEAIENTES 1)
for the initial term of one year and renewable for successive terms upon  {AFHRA—& > RNERTERE B TEE B
the expiry of such term, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in ~ 7BIRIEAA B WABB = 124HB Sn (B R BE L B IE
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. EB{Eo

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BWIIEHITES

The Board currently has four INEDs, one of the INEDs hold appropriate EH&IRAEMNZEBEIIIEMITES » Hh—21817
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management  JEFITEEE B H _FHiRAISE3. 10IKFI7 B EE
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs of the Company ~ ¥#Z#& - &5t siHRANE FEEIEEE - KA SR
have been appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement  BBIIIFEHITERHEIEEER WEIRERA
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles — SIRVARASE 24RE B RERERET EET
of Association. The composition of the Board complied with Rule 3.10A 4R BT L/ RAI5E3. 10AEIBILIERNITES
of the Listing Rules that the INDEs represented at least one-third of the ZE/IMEBEGHE=H2Z—2RE-

Board.

Each of the INEDs has given the Company an annual confirmation of EIFIIIEMITEEDIRE LHIREIEI.13ME
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company  (REIRFEEB UM ETEZTARAT] c AT
considers that all INEDs are independent and meet the independence % FrEBI IERITEESHEBIIA LT ¥ FE
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. FTARRIEE3. IR E 2 B 1S | o

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND EEZFEIEINMERE
DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to ~ EFRSEFHEFXIR SR B/ EAHAN
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their 85> M REMEETRAREEEN R SRHE
contribution into the Board remains informed and relevant. 2B TAEEGIELER

The Directors are committed to complying with the code provision C.1.4 ~ EFTRIETHARESREINZFRNFEXC.14
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous ~FPTEEFHIBETTARXC.14 BEFREEE
professional development activities by reading regulatory updates, andior ~ FREZ B ERD K RHEEERS EEHE
attending seminars/workshops relevant to the business/Directors’ duties in =~ BRIZBEE st &2 N2 BIFEEEER
compliance with code provision C.1.4. JEEhe
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A record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2021
was provided to the Company. The individual training record of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

EFCRMEE_ST_—F+-RA=+—HL
FEBEZNIEIEHRTEAT  FRETIEH
EEHE_T_—F+_B=1T—HILFEE
SIEEIRYECER |

Attending

seminars/

workshops

Reading relevant to
Regulatory the business/
updates directors’ duties
HEE R

RESEEREZ EEHMEAMZ
EHER BE g

Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping FHFEE v 4
Mr. Lai Ka Fai by e v 4
Mr. Tao Ke PERI S v v
Mr. Qiao Weibing SREERE v v
Mr. Ng Tin Shui RRELSE v 4
Non-Executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi ERRL L v
Independent non-executive Directors BIJEMITES
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERSLE v 4

(resigned on 17 March 2022) MRZEZZF=BA++tH

B

Mr. Ho Hin Yip TR E v v
Mr. U Keng Tin REXRTE 4
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David ZRIBS TS v/ v

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board sets the Group’s objectives and strategies and monitors its
performance. The Board also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, merger & acquisition transactions, provision of loans,
director appointments, and dividend and accounting policies and monitors
the internal controls of the Group’s business operation. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility of overseeing the Group’s day to
day operations to management executives.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in accordance with Code
provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, all Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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When the Board delegates aspect of its management and administration ~ EEEEREEEIE RITHILACH @2 E 8T
functions to management, clear directions would be given as to the power FEEER > DRI EERE 2 BT EWIR
of management, in particular, the circumstances where management & LEHEEEEBEHOESGEREBSIELR
should report back to the Board before making decision or entering into  EalRAEB(ELEAEEZ BT o

any commitments on behalf of the Group.

Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to the BEEGIFEEETEIREE TEBRSEE(NEN
management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy and policy — {REESBRLERIEN ; (BB GIRTABANE
initiatives; (i) provision of management reports to the Board in respect of EZRIF R T RETRZ EIERE ; Kijds
Group's performance, financial position and prospects; and (iii) day-to-day &EBZHEEE-

management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEEZEEE

The Board has adopted a Diversity of Board Members Policy (the ZEEROHRMNESRTHELTICER (BT
“Board Diversity Policy”) and discussed all measurable objectives set for % 7ibEER)) » WREEREMsT:m T A EEHE
implementing the policy. 1o

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board ~ AxA SRR RIBIEESE M E L bt RH
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, ### e HR IR ES SR B SN AT
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements — SERVRAE KBRS TN B R -FRESEE T
of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will be based on merit  ERIBEGUERRERES A AR WiIREA =t
and the candidates will be considered against measurable objectives, & BERAATIMEFINEREEIREA o FiE
taking into account the Company’s business and needs. Selection of R AiFI2% HEIEE B LIFAER RITF R
candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not ~ SRI2F - 2B E - FREESTETTE 8
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,  FEBAPRISMER Fls XL RAEE = FH
professional experience and skills in support of good decision making B RIMAE IRIEEEAIRTEREST ) &
process, business development, strategy of the Group and succession ATZER —Z _INFEERIRIIES FEMERIR
planning of the Board. Pursuant to the Amendments to corporate EEE ILEBEEZESEMEMESSHENH
governance requirements, the Company is required to have a board with B BEEETEHEREESENESTHREA
different gender by the end of 2024 and will aim to gradually increase B> iIEIRI& &I INL MR ERILEA - BEE &1
in the number of female board members thereafter. The Board will take 2 HEMRE U LB L EMEEZERES
opportunities to increase the proportion of female members over time  #%° R BIRMRL TIEMNE S T RKBIZ
when selecting and making recommendation on suitable candidates for EFEEGHIRUERITFE -BEFYNHEEEEE
board appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate balance  LEAINEEBEHARERZOTIEMNERELR B
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation BN EREES S @ I K MAEERIHREL KA T
and international and local recommended best practices, with the ultimate TG RIEEH TN EREREZ B ERE - BR
goal of bringing the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires to  JREHIXIBETEFEEA KT AEETEERN
having an appropriate proportion of Directors who have direct experience  BERERAMIEL

in the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and

reflecting the Group'’s strategy. The Company will also take into account

factors based on its specific needs from time to time. The ultimate

decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected

candidates may bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy as 1RREE B RBEERE R EEHEETEL
appropriate from time to time in light of experience, evolving standards G TEE G L TICEE WBER) AEEE
of corporate governance and recommend any proposed changes to the — FLIEZREBIELIRS U EEHGHEH -

Board for approval.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a director nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which set out the criteria and process
in the appointment and nomination of directors, in order to ensure the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and ensure the Board continuity and
appropriate leadership, and the summary of which is set out below:

Nomination criteria

Pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirements effective in 2019,
the Company should disclose its policy for nomination of directors in the
summary of work performed by the Nomination Committee in its corporate
governance report. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the
directorship, the following criteria should be considered:

(i) character and integrity;

(i) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience, and diversity aspects under the Board
Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

iii) any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board;

(iv) for independent non-executive Directors, whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

(v) any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board
in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity;

(vi) willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the
Company; and

(vii)  such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company's

business and succession plan and where applicable may be

adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination

Committee from time to time for nomination of directors and

succession planning.
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Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination
procedures:

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

0)

(i)

If the Board determines that an additional or replacement
Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for identifying
suitable director candidates, including referral from Directors,
shareholders, management, advisors of the Company and external
executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential candidates,
the relevant Nomination Committee will shortlist candidates for
consideration by the Nomination Committee/Board based on
the selection criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate. The Board has the final authority on determining
suitable director candidate for appointment.

Re-election of Directors and Nomination from Shareholders

0)

(i)

Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election, the Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate,
recommend such retiring Director to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information on
such retiring Director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any shareholder of the Company who wishes to nominate a
person to stand for election as a Director at a general meeting
must lodge with the company secretary of the Company within the
lodgement period specified in the relevant shareholder circular
(a) a written nomination of the candidate, (b) written confirmation
from such nominated candidate of his willingness to stand for
election, and (c) biographical details of such nominated candidate
as required under the Listing Rules. Particulars of the candidate
so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a
supplementary circular.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that
there are formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on the
remuneration of Directors. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Remuneration Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong
Lik Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Ho Hin
Yip. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip. For the
attendance of each of the Director in the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Board of Directors”
above in this report.

During the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
review the remuneration packages of the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is delegated with authority of the Board to review the
remuneration package of the Directors and ensures that no Director is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s
website, are consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the
CG Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair and
transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors to the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Nomination Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Ho Hin Yip.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Lik Ping. For the
attendance of each of the Director in the meetings of the Nomination
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Board of Directors”
above in this report.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meetings were held to review
the structure, size, composition of the Board, review the independence
of the INEDs, review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss re-election of
Directors. In selecting and recommending candidates for directorship, the
Committee will consider the background, experience, qualification and
suitability of the candidates as well as the Board Diversity Policy, as the
Nomination Committee has been delegated with the overall responsibility
for implementation, monitoring and periodic review of the Board Diversity
Policy. The Board will approve the recommendations based on the same
criteria. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website, are consistent with the terms
set out in the relevant section of the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Hin Yip, Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. U
Keng Tin. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip. The Audit
Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board primarily to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor, review the financial statements and
provide material advice in respect of financial reporting, oversee the
financial reporting process, internal control, risk management systems and
audit process of the Group and perform other duties and responsibilities
assigned by the Board. The composition of the Audit Committee meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of Listing Rules. For the attendance of
the Directors in the meetings of the Audit Committee, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Board of Directors” above in this report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report:

0)

(i)

(iif)

reviewed and discussed the annual audited financial statements,
results announcement and report for the year ended 31
December 2021, the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the report from the management on the
Company’s review of the risk management and internal control
systems, and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditor;

reviewed of the annual audit plan of the external auditor including
the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to them, their
reporting obligations and their work plan; and

reviewed of the effectiveness and performance of the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit plan.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment of external auditor. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website,
are consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the CG

Code.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

To comply with the code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, the Company has
also adopted written guidelines on no exacting terms than the Model Code
as the code of conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees
to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Company by certain
employees of the Group who are considered to be likely in possession of
inside information of the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

Management shall provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information presented before board meeting for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is in accordance with the
relevant requirements and applicable standards.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 90 to 98 of this
annual report.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls EMEEE RN EBEEIE

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems AEBEMEERANEZRAFNETEHHI
of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and  IRELEMIAYE Q248 « BUR A2 T LUK FE SR 14 )
procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to  MURENAEBEIEERIBHEFFSBAVE - K&
manage its risks across business operations. The Group has established EEREIIHAEEE BZEZETHEANEREE
a risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit 1EZ2RHBAEENBASEIEIERE ((GHREE
Committee and an internal audit function which is carried out by the JBJ) BITHIARZBBIZIEE - EE G E EFERA
functional responsible management of the Group (“Senior Management”). S ESEER BIZ@2 P AEN RS E RIZE
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be  ITEEfEE BERE G EIE M NIBEEITRRAVR
taken in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has the overall 5t B REEEEH WM o BT ANEE I E G EIE
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the overall KABFEIEZA ST EIEMIEHRRAEZRE
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems. The risk ~ F$BEEME > B0 B E AL E R i851E
management and internal control systems of the Group are designed fHEEIBMIELBEMRE o HEUETL AITEB2 M
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business EBEEEBEBERNNINBRAASTNEITIBEK
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance  12fF - BB BB REETEENTEBRLGE
against material misstatement or loss. Its improvement is an ongoing  BYBXM > BELIRENA EAEEIER > 61581
process and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen %5~ 838 & & HRIEHIIE i o ZNEE 7R B 5IE &%
the Company’s control environment and processes. The Board, through — AESEIRER » IRMH#AF] TG R EIRE AR
the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the effectiveness of such RS T - Sk EIE B EHIEBREEHRIHE
systems on an annual basis, covering all material controls including IRAEEBZERIFFENRE  TiIRE—F
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Group has formulated &% Bl 5HE KBS PR B EE B R F o B
and adopted risk management policy in providing directions in identifying, — BE¥izR 4B E ANZE A G EIE A G SR
evaluating and managing significant risks. During regular review and &ISEEMEEE A o b4 REF D ZREHPEZ
on an annual basis, the Senior Management identifies risks that would — ZEGEIESRAT ((HE) HMEIEE G LB
adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses ~ZH B G1FEL S AEEMN A SR KRS E T
and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. R AREE BITAIBETHRAE  AEBH
Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks ~ FEERTEIRE T T EEH R E KRBT (B
considered to be significant. In addition, the Group has engaged Zhonghui ~ A~EBZEFZBMINEE  MHEEEIR) » HINK
Anda Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui”) to assist the Board and the Audit 27 B E X FEHEELURE ARG E K12
Committee in ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control ~ EERYEAME LU 7 £2 B FE B H 2EFS AN S SR I8 1E
systems of the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the ~ {EBYBEST

Group. The annual review plan of the Group covers major activities and

material controls including operational, financial and compliance of the

Group’s business units. It also covers the changes, since the last annual

review, in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group's ability

to respond to changes in its business and the external environment.
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A report on the result of risk management and internal control review
report from Zhonghui was provided to the Audit Committee and the
Board in March 2022. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
had performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, including but not limited to
(i) the general compliances with the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
and the disclosure requirements of the Corporate Governance Report, (ii)
corporate level controls (such as the independence, experience, roles and
responsibilities of the Board and composition of each committee as well as
management monitoring activities), (iii) certain operational level controls,
and (iv) financial reporting functions. In the course of internal audit
reviews, Zhonghui identified internal control deficiencies and weaknesses,
proposed recommendations for improvements and remedial actions with
management and process owners. The management has taken certain
remedial actions accordingly. The results of the internal control reviews
and the management's remedial actions have been reported to the Audit
Committee. One of the deficiencies were related to a delayed reporting
of a disclosable finance lease transaction due to an inadvertent overlook
by a PRC subsidiary. Details of the transaction refer to an announcement
dated 31 January 2022. Zhonghui has followed up with the remedial
measures proposed in the announcement and they were timely taken
to address any occurrence of similar incidents in the future. Other than
the said deficiency, which has been satisfactorily addressed after the
relevant remedial actions were taken, the Board concluded that there are
no material irregularities nor areas of concern that would have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s state of affair, and that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were effective and adequate
(including the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions) and, save as discussed in elsewhere in this
report, have complied with the CG code provisions on risk management
and internal control during the year. There was also no material breach
of procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information during the year. The Company regularly reminds the
directors and the relevant staff about due compliance and latest regulatory
updates with the insider information and other relevant regulations.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION Z BB &

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the auditors of the Company &E_Z-—F+_H=+—HIEFEE X T

provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and the Group. ZEENE A A B e A E BB HIZ S IEZER
o

The auditor’s remuneration payable to BDO Limited in relation to auditand &HZE_Z-_—F+_B=+—HIEEE tEMH
non-audit services on an agreement upon procedure for interim report  REERETZFEEM IR EAZ UL IEZBUARFSE
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$1,500,000 and & B EESEHEFHEFABE AT 2%
HK$140,000 respectively. B4 Bl 251,500,0007 75 5 140,00078 75 ©

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting — ZsA SIAZEiEMFL I 75 Rz 2 ERSR SEFTEEER

responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent — EHYEE00E & 559088 2~ I LI HETIR S A ©
Auditor's Report on pages 90 to 98.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT = 4R 5 T2 B & i

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration paid BB ¥ EAFBISFAMESCEELLE  KEEX
to the members of the senior management (excluding Directors) by band ¥ SR EBEEBRE (FEIEEE) WM& E

during the Year is set out below: BFHNT

Number of person(s)
Remuneration band (HK$) s E GBT) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 Z%1,000,000 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000 1
1,500,001 to 2,500,000 1,500,001 2,500,000 -
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEABME

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company FREEZERHEEESATMEIRMEMNE R KRR
Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Board o AT EEE SMREBEES TR KIZ
policies and procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows FUKEEEEREZE S REKSIEBZH
and communications among Directors and its committees as well as with U REIEEBERIENITEEZ ZHNEETERE
shareholders and management, and between management and the non-  4@e

executive directors.

Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Siu Wai Bun, are the joint company secretaries  Z5 254 R @R L AR ATINBIE AT
of the Company. Both of Mr. Li and Mr. Siu report to Mr. Wong Lik Ping,  #h& o FHERBILELREETT T FE L ¥k
the Chairman of the Board. FEERo

Mr. Li Chak Hung was appointed as company secretary of the Company ZEZMEFEN S _E=F+=-HESZEA
on 13 March 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified ~ ANATIZ ABIME - HASHGHHATEE
Public Accountants. He undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional 1R A< E 2 B B8 15/)\BF 2 FHRAZE 2123
training to update his skills and knowledge during the year. DUEHR SE R K4 o
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Mr. Siu Wai Bun was appointed as joint company secretary of the
Company on 6 November 2017. Mr. Siu is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. During the year, Mr. Siu
undertook more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room
2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a BRRIRBAANESESENER
Director

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person (the “Proposed Candidate”)  f#fgsR A =2 A+ (B EE A RAATRE
to stand for election as a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the %ﬁﬁtﬂL%$ s MBS LU S B R AR
following documents must be validly served to the Board or the company ‘A TR BT B EMEL (kA S BEFHE
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business — s5iE6SFEI SR AE221E2203F) » KHEEF AR
in Hong Kong at Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy —~ SI/ASIMEZEUR :

Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong:

(@)  a written notice signed by the shareholder(s), who is/are duly  (a) KEBRHBERERNE LRENRER
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting, of his/her intention to ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%kui@fﬁ)\% REE
propose the Proposed Candidate for election as a Director; and EEEE ; &

(b)  a written notice signed by the Proposed Candidate of his/her  (b) HEREEASESRPEBEE2EEEN
willingness to be elected as a Director. EmEEA

As stipulated in Article 85 of the Articles of Association, the period for — WNABMEFZAMEISE8HIKHRTE » IR ZAMAIFTIRE
lodgement of such notices required under such Article will commence no  JEBFIRIPRHAREIA H AR EE N B ITREARS
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting  EITERIERMSEBESLEH » HIEHEARIE
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to  ERAEREKREAZHEERtH  MARSATEH
the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period ~ AREINSEHEZE DA LR

during which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least

seven days.

Making enquiry to the Board RMESgREEH

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the RREBIUBERUEERFREAEEZRHZE
Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong  sK&E T 2 ST EANA DSBS il
Kong at Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, A& E(FiETIE6SEEL SR AE220E2203% »
Wanchai, Hong Kong. HarAH AR A ME
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy for striking a right balance
between rewarding its shareholders by sharing a portion of the profits and
meeting adequate cash reserves for its working capital requirements and
future prospects of the Company. With reasonable but not pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio, the proposed amount of dividends will be
made at the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’s
operational results, cash flow situation, financial conditions, capital
expenditure requirements, general business conditions and strategies,
future economic environment, statutory and regulatory restrictions and
any other factors that the Board may deem relevant. The policy will be
reviewed from time to time so as to keep in line with the change of market
conditions and other factors as the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
has established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the
annual general meeting, the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the website of the Company at
www.egichk.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No change has been made to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association during 2021. The Memorandum and Articles of Association
have been published at the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Wong Lik Ping, aged 61, is the Chairman of the Group. He joined ~EHFHRE 615 REBTF - KN _ZT—_
the Group in August 2012 and is responsible for overall leadership FEN\BMALRER B ESAREEEILEE  5KRK
strategic planning, business development and Board issues of the Group. I %(HEREEFTEEHT - HOFBE_E
He was (i) an executive director and a vice-chairman of Shougang ZEANE=RE_Z—LE+_AraiELE
Fushan Resources Group Limited (stock code: 639) from March 2009 REEBRAT ERIHFLHE | 639) BEHITESE
to December 2015 and (i) an executive director and the chairman of REIEE ; KA -ZEZHE+—BE_Z—X
Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from November HF— BN EEBEEREESR AT MO AT :
2009 to January 2016, both companies listed on the Main Board of the — 990)#EFHITEE R TE -?ﬂi%//_\\ﬁi’]?%%ﬁ“
Stock Exchange. He is a director and the sole shareholder of Worldkin ~ FrEMR L Z AT o R ADAT EERE (E
Development Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within R & &5 KIS (T3B 5 R HBEIEMH))) EXV
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), &) tHEISER AR AT 2 EFRE—RE - T
Mr. Wong is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s 4AIRATHEARBAEEHEHEESES -
Political Consultative Conference. He has extensive experience in trading I HFEARITEEALENE S  SRAEE
business, financial industry and investments in a wide range of businesses 45 o

in the PRC.

Mr. Lai Ka Fai, aged 52, joined the Group in June 2010 and was ZREMELRLE 525 N _E—ZFENBIIARE
appointed as an executive director and chief executive officer of the EWMR-ZTE—_—F—ARZZT—tF+—F%
Company in January 2012 and November 2017 respectively. Mr. Lai  BIEBEARAT I TES RITEARSE, c 2R&EE
is responsible for the corporate governance, administration and new BEAREBETESA (THEIERITERHTE
business development of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws RN EESRETFE T ASBIS L2281
from The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom, a IR &BAZEES Z2HEBE RN ERZTHT
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a ~ AKEES T B IEE T o M AS BT 1T
Master degree of Business Administration from the University of Leicester E%%iﬂn&EW&E&E%%%&%%%@‘I_"F
in the United Kingdom. He is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong — F4%E%

Kong Special Administrative Region and has over 20 years of experience

in the legal field.

Mr. Tao Ke, aged 38, was appointed as an executive director of the PERISE4E 385 M _E—AE=ZH/NHEST
Company on 6 March 2015. Mr. Tao holds a Master of Social Science ~ AZRATZHITESE  MLEFARAT A
degree from University of Glasgow and a Bachelor degree in Economics ~Z# @RIEBETE2M MU LIEFIET ASLES
from Beijing Institute of Technology. Mr. Tao has extensive experience  EAt-E34i o BESL LT ATIRYE R IMHT R E0REIE
in corporate finance and overseas merger and acquisition. He worked HBEE&H -HERREERTEASEREH
in international investment banks and responsible for clients’ project EIE IEBEWESH  URZIEEBE R ARRIBEE L
management, project acquisition and various initial public offerings. Mr.  FAY T {E-PAEAEIRA LS —FIC TEERARL
Tao is currently a general manager of a chemical production group in o

Shandong.
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Mr. Qiao Weibing, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director of BfELE 545 R_E—E=A+tH%E

the Company on 17 March 2016. Mr. Qiao holds a bachelor degree
from Shanxi University and a master degree in management engineering
from China University of Mining and Technology. Mr. Qiao has over 20
years' working experience in the government regulatory authorities and
financial institutions in the PRC. Mr. Qiao is currently the chief investment
officer of the Company and the chairman and CEO of Beijing Ever Grand
International Finance Lease Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company in the
PRC.

Mr. Ng Tin Shui, aged 66, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree of
science in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan
in Canada. He was the chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Merchants
Association between 2008 and 2014. He is also the life time member of
the American Society of Mechanical Engineers. Mr. Ng has over 30 years
of experience in trading of a variety of pharmaceutical products, health
supplement, personal care and other healthcare products (collectively
“Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products”). Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Ng was involved in sales and corporate management in the trading
of Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products, including KT&G Ginseng
and Tiger Balm, which were first authorised products for distribution
in Hong Kong. Recently, his scope of work and experience expanded
to the investment in the research and development and production of
biotechnologies, including application of algae and marine ingredients,
plant stem cell and Car-T cell specialised in the cancer DNA reading and
implanting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yip Man Yi, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company in October 2019. Ms. Yip was graduated from Seneca
College of Applied Arts and Technology, Toronto, Canada and has over
22 years’ experience in financial market and money market. Ms. Yip has
been worked with HSBC Market (Asia) Limited for Global Markets and
companies listed on both the Main and the GEM Boards of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She was actively involved in formulating
investment strategy and was responsible for overseeing the operation of
various investment projects. Ms. Yip was appointed as executive director
and chairman of Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code:
8173) (currently known as Hephaestus Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange from December 2015 to
November 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BWIIEHITES

Mr. Lo Tsun Yu, aged 37, has been appointed as an Independent Non- EEF &4 375 CESEABIIIFRITE
Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, a member of the E\%V%E@Jﬁ%‘ﬁ%é%%ﬁié&ﬁ@ﬂé
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee gng BE - "HF-A+tHEEN E
with effect from 17 March 2022. Mr. Lo obtained his Bachelor of %iﬁé_geﬁtﬂ%ﬁy{m SRBEBEEXER
Arts degree in Economics from the University of Toronto in 2007 and EBtTE2MIAERNR _S——FEEEBEHXAK
subsequently a Juris Doctor degree from the Chinese University of Hong B2 AEAE 51 o B FIRATBEMA ATEA
Kong in 2011. Mr. Lo is currently a practising solicitor at Messrs. P. C. Woo ~ IR R 2 RMEFRFTMH RN Bt R
& Co., a firm of solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo specializes AR T2FE T EIEE RN ARBE - AHK
in corporate finance work including initial public offerings, mergers and  INEELIRIRE S - BAER —ZE—MNFE N\ HE
acquisitions and regulatory compliance. Mr. Lo was admitted as a solicitor 1S & B REMHEB K

in Hong Kong in August 2014.

Mr. Ho Hin Yip, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-  {AIfT25%4% 485 N _E—_F+_HAESE
executive director of the Company in December 2012. He is presently — AZATIEILIENITES « MIREHMIKL LHA
the Financial Controller and Joint Company Secretary of Singapore-listed ~— SlFPE## LR EFREE AT ﬁﬁéﬁ@?”“%ﬁ
China Shenshan Orchard Holdings Co. Ltd. (formerly known as Dukang [RAT]) 2 B4R HHE A TIME B8 5%

Distillers Holdings Limited), where he is responsible for the finance and Bl Z AT R &5t EIRARKREEEAEH- 1)§Z
accounting functions, statutory compliance and corporate governance BT REt AEER R+ _FELH M AL
affairs. He has more than 22 years of financial and auditing experience. BUFFFATR G A S E FEE RSB G HET
He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified AEHHESE MIFE BAE—REEHEEZE
Accountants and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Hyﬁﬁﬁ’&j BA1LSE 1 1495) CE2E—RENR

Certified Public Accountants. He also acts/has served as an independent f—tfﬁ ﬁ) \EF@HBEPEHR%EE/\_J (&
non-executive director of each of Jiyi Household International Holdings @Ttsf 633) —NEFENBEZE—NEF

Limited (stock code: 1495), Hope Life International Holdings Limited tﬁ)&%ﬁi uﬂ*ﬁﬁaﬁ“ﬁx*ﬁ_ﬁﬁ NE) AR -
(stock code:1683) from August 2015 to February 2017 and from August 309) (ZE—NE+_BE_ZT_= fﬁlﬂﬂ—
2018 to July 2019) and Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock H) B ZBIIIENTES  FIEZS AT ER
code: 309) (from December 2014 to 1 April 2020), all of which are  B#zcFrEMR e

companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. U Keng Tin, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non- SREXEE 71 R BE—=FHAESEA
executive director of the Company in May 2013. He holds the Bachelor's K@ﬂ@ié‘lﬁﬂﬁ%? BIFENERLTAEZ
degree of Arts from York University, Canada and Master's degree of Arts BEABNEF=EFMASEBEEES
in International Economics from University of San Francisco, USA. He is ﬁﬁﬁéiﬁﬁf_LOﬁEETPF@%”:ﬁ/\j BRARFE AR
presently a director of an estate management company, Full Fill Services ATIZ&EE-FITE_E_TFHAE_ZT_—
Co., Limited. He has also acted as a non-executive director of Noble —FE/NBIEFISERZIRERIERAERAT (&)
Engineering Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8445) from September X5 : 8445) Z?Fiﬂ TEF RRBSERAAN
2020 to June 2021. He has over 30 years of experience in the securites ~ =-+EAYALESR

industry.
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Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Leung
holds a Bachelor's degree of Pharmacy from National Defense Medical
Center, School of Pharmacy in Taipei Taiwan, and a master of Science
Clinical Pharmacy from University of Sunderland in the UK. He obtained
a pharmacist registration and practising certificate from Pharmacy &
Poisons Board of Hong Kong. Over 20 years, Mr. Leung has been working
as pharmacist and/or consultant in various dispensaries and medical
centers where he is responsible for operation, strategic planning and
execution of pharmaceutical business. He has been an adjunct lecturer
of Pharmaceuticals and Pharmacology in HKU SPACE. Mr. Leung has
extensive experience, qualifications and exposure in sales and supply
and business management of pharmaceutical and healthcare products in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC markets.
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The Board is pleased to present this Report and the audited financial ZEEGMARZARERAERHFE_T_——

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. F+ZA=+—HILFEZREZITERE -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEXH
The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. KRB EBEHAREZERK -

Details of the activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal AT FEMBA S 2 EF ¥ 5 R HMMFIEH
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.  ZR4x & BT ERERMIEE39

SEGMENT INFORMATION SERE R

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment information for the #HE_ZE_—F+_B=+—HUIEE &xEH
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in note 5 and note 6 to the ZUWAKRDIERZ DITEHINE S IHFEIIRER
consolidated financial statements. RSN

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS FERDE

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set AEEHE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLEE
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated — 7 2/AEFFINAERFEOE K FI0E 2 ix518
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 99  HRAEizSIB REMEEINTER

and 100 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year BEAEZRNBEE_E_—F+_HB=+—
ended 31 December 2021. HIEFEZ KRS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for ~ANEEBTRBEMBEE > 2B UREERS

the last five financial years is set out on pages 243 and 244 of this annual B2 EEEH YN AREIR F243E 52448 o
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME--BER=HE
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group ~ FRAREER » AEB VX HE KB E 2 25

during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial — FFIEEFIN RS M FIRETMIFEL3
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL fg 7

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the AT Z IASFIBET IR S BT IRERMIEE28
consolidated financial statements.

7 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2021, in the opinion of the directors, the Company's
share premium and reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to HK$218,867,000.

Movement in the share premium and reserves of the Group during the
year are set out on page 103 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers represented 39% and 67% of the Group’s revenue in
2021 respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers represented 95% and 99% of the Group’s purchases
in 2021 respectively.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS R Bk 532 5

Related party transactions during the year are disclosed in note 38 to the  ANEE R Rl B X BRI B m S B TSR R M
consolidated financial statements. 5138°

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FERX S

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter BHEZE-_—F+_"_A=+—HIFE &~EH
into any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction M R¥ETT_ETHIRESE+IUASEIE N AMERIRGERS
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions 5 EITERIER 5 o i S BAFS IR RMIsE38FINE
set disclosed in note 38 of the consolidated financial statements did not  BYREEH 5 35 Z A AER_E RSB+ UASZIE T
constitute connected transaction or continuing connected transaction — FIRAEAT 5 BIFASRIERS 5 ©

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS 55

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date ~ REBEERNEREEARREHE KATZES
of this report were: wr

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Wong Lik Ping (Chairman) FFRE (FE)

Mr. Lai Ka Fai Rt

Mr. Tao Ke MRS

Mr. Qiao Weibing SEEfE

Mr. Ng Tin Shui SREHRE

Non-executive director ERITES

Ms. Yip Man Yi Eeet

Independence non-executive directors BiIERITES

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee (resigned on 17 March 2022) RERSE W2 "F =B+t HFHD
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu (appointed on 17 March 2022) ERFhE W2 TF=F+tHEZD
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (G

Mr. U Keng Tin REXRSE

Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David RS S

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association,  RIEAA BB Z 2B E84(1)E > EHFHk
Mr. Wong Lik Ping, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr. U Keng Tin, shall retire from 4= ~fAIf T3 E RRER A BN ERERRBE
offices by rotation in the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being K& LEESE  EREF BRI FEESEREE
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 1Eo

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,  TRIEZA B4R E RN E833)E  BIEFLE
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu shall retire from office in the forthcoming annual general BN EERFBEARZT SR IBRHES BRI
meeting, and being eligible, offer himself for re-election. FEREEE T

8 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The biographic details of the existing directors are set out on pages 74 to
and 77 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 29 July 2016 (the “Share Option
Scheme”). As at 31 December 2021, a total outstanding number of share
options were granted to the eligible employees, including directors of the
Company, amounted to 1,983,333 which were all lapsed upon expiry on
29 July 2021. Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Since the Share
Option Scheme has expired on 29 July 2021, the Company did not have
any share option scheme in force as at the date of this report.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Below sets out the summary of the Share Option Scheme:
1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board
to grant share options to selected eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.
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Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as
it may think fit, grant share options to any eligible participants
to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with paragraph
3 below for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. Eligible
participants shall mean any full-time employees, executives or
officers, any directors (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of the Group and any
persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or
have contributed to the Group.

Exercise price of the options

The price per share payable on the exercise of a share option is
to be determined by the Board, provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of:

i. the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of grant (which is deemed to be the date of grant if
the offer for the grant of a share option is accepted by the
eligible participant), which must be a business day;

ii. the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five (5) business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of grant; and

iii. no less than the nominal amount of the share.

Acceptance of offer

An offer for the grant of share options must be accepted within
twenty-eight (28) days inclusive of the day on which such offer
was made. The amount payable by the eligible participant of a
share option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of a share option is HK$1.00.
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Time of Grant and Exercise of Share Options

No grant shall be made after inside information has come to the
knowledge of the Company until such inside information has
been announced pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. In particular, no share options may be granted during the
period commencing one (1) month immediately preceding the
earlier of (a) the date of the Board meeting for the approval of the
Company’s annual or interim results; and (b) the deadline for the
Company to publish its annual or interim results announcement,
and ending on the date of actual publication of the results
announcement.

No share options may be granted to an eligible participant who is
subject to the Model Code during the periods or times in which
such eligible participant is prohibited from dealing in Shares
pursuant to the Model Code.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
commencing on such date on or after the date on which the share
option is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
share options and expiring at the close of business on such date
as the Board may determine in granting the share options but in
any event shall not exceed five (5) years from the date of grant
(which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the grant of the
share options is accepted).

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option
Scheme for which a share option must be held or the performance
target which must be achieved before a share option can be
exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any eligible participant(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding share options), in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue,
unless (i) a circular is despatched to the Shareholders; (ii) the
Shareholders approve the grant of the share options in excess of
the 1% limit referred to in this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant
eligible participant and his associates shall abstain from voting.
The number and terms (including the exercise price) of share
options to be granted to such eligible participant(s) must be fixed
before shareholders’ approval.
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7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was in force for a period of five (5)
years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted by Shareholders in the extraordinary general
meeting held on 29 July 2016 and shall expire at the close of
business on the day immediately preceding the fifth anniversary
thereof. As such, the Share Option Scheme has lapsed on 29 July
2021.

8. Total number of shares available to be issued

As the Share Option Scheme has lapsed on 29 July 2021, no new
share options are available for issue after the lapse of the Share
Option Scheme and as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors have any interest in competing business to the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its holding Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or his
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2021, the following directors and chief executive of
the Company have the following interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code:

Long and short positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the

=N
Rz

/|

EREKREETHA
MR IR R E s

\\l

/w

T2 —F+"A=+—H ' ARFAMIEE
RESITBRABRERBHEMERERE (&
RBHF LG REIEXVED Z i~ 18RRI &
EEED BREABINREESMAERNIE
32fFAFE B Mz B %A » SiREE
F B E1R B EXVER 7 K87 Bl s 1R % T RIA
SITNERAB RSP Z B RORBIN T ¢

RAERBEBR MERRHZFRRNA

Company:
Number of share/underlying shares held
HERK /BRI EE
Long (L) or
Total Short (S)  Percentage of
Nature of interest interests Position interests
FELH
Directors/chief executive B/ IETHAER BElE R KBS  HE@ESH
Wong Lik Ping THE Beneficial owner 46,600,000 S 2.76%
BLBEEA
Controlled Corporation 145,500,000 S 8.62%
ZEHER (Note 1)
Hiz1)
Ng Tin Shui RRE Interest of spouse 163,900,000 L 9.71%
et g (Note 2)
(Hz22)
Controlled Corporation 56,570,000 L 3.35%
ZEHER (Note 3)
Hz3)
Notes: Bt -
1. These interests are held by Worldkin Development Limited (“Worldkin”) which is 1. ZEERHUSERERAT (BE) 155 mitH
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Lik Ping. Mr. Wong is therefore deemed to be interested in HEAFREZERES AL TREFRAFHE)
the shares held by Worldkin under the SFO. R ZRDHEER S ARG R E 2 #m o
2. Ms. Chi Chin is the spouse of Mr. Ng Tin Shui, Mr. Ng is deemed to be interested in 2. TERTARKRELENR B  RAEEREANE
163,900,000 shares held by his spouse under the SFO. FR B+ 2. 163,900,0000% A7 F R 5 5 R E 1K
BIFTFRE 2w o
3. These interests are held by China Food Safety Holding (Hong Kong) Company 3. ZERDV AP RZER (&) 5RAE (PR

Limited (“CFSH (HK) Co., Ltd"), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui, Mr. Ng is
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by CFSH (HK) Co., Ltd under
the SFO.

i &8 BRAE 8 2 ATHRRE L ER
%ﬁéﬁ"lﬁt REEWEARPRRER &8 A

ARFAZRN TP EEESRPEEAFFREZ
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive and their PR EXFRIREEIN BIEES - FEBTRAER
associated had any interests or short position in the shares, underlying &2 B AR AA T S EEAIERSER (T
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations, & 55 % & HRE 1A SEXVER) 2 B35 ~ #BRARG1H 5L
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register kept ~ BH#EEH B BE LN AR TRIEF S LA
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified — E1&FISE352(E7BF B ~ B s 2 (E g ol
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of & » SR #5555 R HA G (55 SEXVER 57 R8N B &

Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code. IRESFRIZERITR G A B R B AP 2 (R A e
EmOKA ©

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS EZEERTETHASEERH
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES NEREEZEF

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the directors, chief & FXFRIREEIN R _BE_—F+_F=+—
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to B #EARABESE  TETHA B RFE B
have any long positions or short position in the shares, underlying shares ~ BEAREATREHABEEZE (EERESLPE
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the — 1&BIEXVER) 2 B& 15 ~ 1BRER D S BEERER
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register — BU#ARIEIER Bt A A BIRIEHR S RIS
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which &I 352{5 77 & 2 B2 F A sk A » SR
has been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant tothe — #_E T RAI 2 A2 2SR B A1 & AN B KR B3Pl

Model Code of the Listing Rules. ZHBTHKE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE

As at 31 December 2021, in accordance with the register of the W_E_—F+_A=+—H RBERAETE
substantial shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336 of the — FRFEH M EAEI&HIE336KEFEE 2 T EMRFE
SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part > SR E 5 5 R AR E 1R SEXVER 552 %370 28 K
XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules, the following persons (other than EHRBIRTEBFIREE U TALT EERE
Directors and Chief executives) were interest (including short positions) in ~ ZITELA ERRIN RAA T IG1H SRR 1D R 8
the shares or underlying shares of the Company. Biem (EFEXA)

8 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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Interest in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company: RASATE@AL, FRRAIRD Z 1%
Number of
Shares/ Long (L) or
underlying Short (S) Percentage
Nature of interest Notes Shares held positions holding
HERR/ FELH
Name of Shareholders RELRE 4 s Mzt MHRERHHE HB(S) RRESIT
Funde Sino Life Insurance EEEM ASHRRIG Beneficial owner
Co. Ltd. EBE’/}E BEREBA 357,443,000 21.18%
Worldkin Development Limited ~ tHE13EERAT Beneficial owner 1 145,500,000 S 8.62%
BB
Win Wind Resources Limited ERERARAR Security interest 2&3
ERER 2K3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Oshidori International Holdings ~ EEEREZRBIRAE  Security interest
Limited ERED 3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Win Wind Capital Limited BEREAERAT Security interest 3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
ERER
Heron Biomedical Limited ERNEEEE Beneficial owner
BIRAF BufEAA 5 163,900,000 L 9.71%
Ms. Chi Chin TEYL Controlled corporation 5 163,900,000 L 9.71%
ZEGAE
Interest of spouse 5 56,570,000 L 3.35%
fofefEs
CFSH (HK) Co. Ltd HRELER EE) Beneficial owner
BIRAT BREAA 6 56,570,000 L 3.35%
Expert Magic Limited Expert Magic Limited Beneficial owner 175,870,968 L 10.42%
BB
Mr. Lam Tsun On WEZEE Beneficial owner 9,376,129 L 0.56%
BREAA
Controlled corporation 4 175,870,968 L 10.42%
REGEE
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Notes:

6.

Mr. Wong Lik Ping holds entire equity interest of Worldkin Development Limited
(“Worldkin”) and is accordingly deemed to have interest in 145,500,000 shares of the
Company that Worldkin has interests in under the SFO.

Win Wind Resources Limited has security interests in 192,100,000 shares.

Win Wind Resources Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Win Wind Capital
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Oshidori International Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Oshidori International Holdings Limited is deemed to have interests in
192,100,000 shares held by Win Wind Resources Limited under the SFO.

Mr. Lam Tsun On holds 65% equity interest of Expert Magic Limited (“Expert Magic”)
and is deemed to be a interested in the shares in which Expert Magic is interested in
under the SFO.

Out of the 220,470,000 shares which Ms. Chi Chin was interested in, (i)

163,900,000 shares were held by Heron Biomedical Limited, a company wholly
owned by her; and (ii) 56,570,000 shares were held by her spouse, Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

CFSH (HK) Co. Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 57 to 73 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the
benefit of the directors of the Group is currently in force and was in
force during the year. The Company has taken out insurance against the
liabilities and costs associated with proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Group.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the amount
of public float of at lease 25% of the issued shares of the Company as
approved by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and permitted under the
Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 6 June 2022 to 9 June 2022 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be effected. In order to qualify for entittement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m., 2 June 2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 were audited by Messrs. BDO Limited (“BDQO”).

A resolution to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed elsewhere on this report, the Group had no material
events for disclosure subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ST AR

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 99
to 242, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$62,708,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 and had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$58,411,000 as of that date.
These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Impairment of finance lease receivables
(Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had finance lease receivables of
net carrying amount of approximately HK$153.4 million, and impairment
of approximately HK$149.7 million has been made over the balance. It
represents 14.2% of total assets of the Group.

Loss allowances for finance lease receivables are based on management'’s
estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into account the credit loss experience, past collection
history, subsequent settlement of each finance lease customer, and also
relevant deposits received, pledge of leased assets and guarantees and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management judgement.

We identified the impairment of finance lease receivables as a key audit
matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements,
and the assessment of the recoverability of finance lease receivables
and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgement, which increases the risk of error or
potential management bias.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) REHEFFHE @
Impairment of finance lease receivables (Continued) RMEAERKRIRE @

HAIWICEE :

Our responses:

Obtaining an understanding of the Group's impairment provision
policy and methodology for impairment assessment in relation to
the application of the ECL model;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
finance lease arrangement past due as at year end date and
corroborating explanations from management with supporting
evidence, such as understanding credit status of debtors,
checking historical and subsequent settlement records and other
correspondence with the debtors;

Assessing the reasonableness of the ECL model methodology
and related parameter, including probability of default, loss given
default, and risk exposure at default used by the management’s
expert;

Evaluating the independence, competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert; and

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation to
impairment of finance lease receivables, which included in Note

- T SEENBEREBRNERR
HEEBERIVETRETERTTE

- HEEEENSEAMEHELHINFE
EEHBBERER TREERUEEE
EEREE T REBAREERR
EBEMERIEFCER R EEBA
BYEfthIE(E ;

- THEEEEEREANERREEEER
N ERER2HNEEN  BIEEDN
B BRBRKRE USSE AR ;

- SHMEEEEERRBIINE AL
M5 &

NRES

- EEFT#*AH??@E%%W FE18K 35PN R E
BRI ERRER S 5

18 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEHSIE-Q;TETE
BRGEMBHREMEEL)

Impairment of loan receivables
(Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of loan receivables MW _Z_—F+_A=+—H > EWERKREE
and its related impairment allowance amount to HK$158.6 million and  RERE B AV EBRE S E 9 Bl 4158,600,00078 7T
HK$105.5 million respectively. Impairment allowance for credit exposure  2105,500,0005 7z 55 =P ER = B R SG A RERE
at Stage 3 amounted to HK$103.1 million. #7103,100,00078 7T

The assessment of impairment for loan receivables involves significant  FEWRE FRAVRE L R EIRE RS B A%
management judgements and estimates on the amount of expected credit ~ FEER{E BE1ES B E AHIBI R hsto
loss at the reporting date.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a MR RERLE: SEEFEBLLRERESHEAEY)
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition by comparing  taREsE B A FITEERTZE RN EE E RELN AN
the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting s B#ARESELIERIE BRE BBBEE LN o 7t
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable  LLERY > SEEGEEHBEBEN HMANES
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue ~ FJBNRIES Z B SIE R ITHE R  EAIEE
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative ~— 2F0E M Bk UL ATIENME DA o

information and also, forward looking analysis.

9 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FESEFE @
Impairment of loan receivables (Continued) FEWERRE (&)
Our responses: HMHEE

Understanding of the Group’s credit risk management and
practices, and assessed the Group’s impairment provisioning
policy in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on i) the level of
disaggregation of portfolios for impairment assessment; ii) the
use of reasonable and supportable credit risk information that is
available without undue cost or effort; and iii) the staging criteria
for determining if a significant increase in credit risk has occurred;

Testing the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
significant increase in credit risk and the basis for classification
of exposures into 3 stages. Our testing included the checking to
loan overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or other related
information, and considering the stage classification determined
by the Group;

Assessing the reasonableness of the ECL model methodology
and related parameter, including probability of default, loss given
default, and risk exposure at default used by the management's
expert;

Evaluating the independence, competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert; and

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation to
impairment of loan receivables, which included in Note 19 and 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

- TR BEEREFEERREENRER I
fHE EEBERBEEBMBREERS
SR E 2 BUERBEER IR LEE
BHRE LT Z D ERR iR B
RIBENERARNS NI ERZ GIF
RXFHEERRER ; KiEEEER
A R RAEIE M D BEEAREEH 2 H
i ;

- AS SEEETEERRKIEBEM
k&R EAS = ERRNEERS
GE-HANASCSEREEMARE
B BEREELENEMBRER  IE
B BEEEENRERNE;

- SHAEEEEREANRMEEHER
XA ERER2HMNEEN  SFEYN
R BAIBE  LURBA R BRI ;

- HEEEEERBIUME ENREER

{4

- SHE R B R 5 R AR MY R 192 35FT AR UK
BRURERIRERS S
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) REHEFFHE @

Valuation of equity investments at fair value through other BATEZEAHMEZEWENRZRERE
comprehensive income Z&{E

(Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements) BREREMBIRRMEEL7)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of equity investments at MW _ZE_—F+_HA=+—H '@ AFEE
fair value through other comprehensive income amount to HK$108.8 BEMEEWN YR KRB EZREES
million. The equity investments represent investments in unlisted equity ~ 108,800,00058 7T ° ISR BN & B & R ERLIL
issued by private entities established in Hong Kong and the PRC. ZINBBEITZIE LM

The equity investments are valued using different methods ranging from  IRIER BB RIS AL LB L ETEE ZE
market approach. Valuation techniques for these underlying investments  BRARE 2 HERMEAE LB TE ML E
can be subjective in nature and require significant management estimates B EASIEEIEHEAGsT > 35 FTER 8
including financial forecasts, discount factors, growth rates and market IREZEEEXRELTHIZEHE Rt SEE
multiples amongst others. The actual results could therefore differ from the ~ BIBEA BRI [EE

estimates.

Management has disclosed the judgments and estimates used for the fair ~ EIEE B MR ERM IS BE L E A FET
value assessment of investments in note 35 to the financial statements. P R 2 FI R 5T o

Due to the significant judgments applied by management in the fair value — EEFSEIEEIA T EHERFTIER 2 EAH
assessment, the valuation of equity investments at fair value through other ~ IR A T EHBEM 2 EREES R Z BB HEEHE
2 LERE S BRARE TR

comprehensive income was considered as a key audit matter.

FHFIBIEIE

Our responses:

- Evaluating the independent professional valuer's competence, — B EEGEMNERE ENAE
capabilities and objectivity; ]

LA T EEERE I EEAE
R (R s A B (I 58U B2

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and reasonableness  —
of the input data provided by management to the independent

9

professional valuer, to supporting evidence, such as market data;

Reviewed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and models used, and whether they are in line with generally
acceptable valuation guidelines and principles;

Challenged the key judgments by management with reference
to market data, our own expectations based on our own industry
knowledge and management's strategic plans; and

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation to the
valuation of equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which included in Note 17 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE

FEM R BTN LURMHEEER ;

- SHMEFTANGER ERRERERRINE
iR E —E AR MAEES RRA—
=,

- S2EDHEBEURBMAERBSTEN
HAEIE BRI (PR ERE
EEPTERIRASRFER ; K2

- SHE R B R B ER AR MY EE 17 R3OFT &R A
TEZBHMEEEGEI R RIERE
ZIEERNRERS S



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we have
obtained Management Discussion and Analysis but have not obtained the
remaining other information included in the annual report (the “Remaining
Other Information”), which is expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Remaining Other Information, if we conclude there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate that
matter to the directors and take appropriate action considering our legal
rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
CERVA LI ey
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  FFINEIE E¥iz SRR BEEST =T
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material IR HERFESSERMEN N E A EEHMEE S
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's — IB{FsE > WIZBRFIEENERVOTIETEQLD
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance  BERSER HH B EIIEFFIE RAVIZEENER S o BRIEIL
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do  #b> FFIAVER S o] BIEE Mt AR o B P A st
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person — ZK¥R 5 7 REEMEAEM A L EEF RIS ED
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of  ES{EAER  SIEFRERSNKENRE B
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance  FEfRFEIZIBE BB TERETHSH TFE—=
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  ASEZRFRIMIZIERFARAE2ETR o $E R Il AT LU ER
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material ~ 5ESi8:25 1L YIRS IETEHI© FIEEIH L FEAEE
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to  ZRPIBER E4 S MR REB B KRB HRE
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these — FrfEHAVASESRIE » BB REAVSE SRR nI AR 1E
consolidated financial statements. BEKo

ZHB ML B 5t iR 5 MBI R A
EHEE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional  7EiRIES BB sEREITHEHAVIBRPR > FKIFIE
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We — FB 7 SRZERIER » (745 7 B2 IREFASE o 975
also:

s B! A FHE A B F A SR B R UR G
MBRREFEBEARBERRILAER > &

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the e
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

9

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BB A MBHRRK
ERNEE @

HEFRAFKBECESTERNGEN
TR G o ARIRFTEERIE 5T/&RE - iR
BEFEUEFENBERARNERTE
EME - EMmAJE BN SEENTE
SRR EEBARRE - MRAFITR
FEEATEEL  RIALEZEZHEE
HEPIRFBEAE IR GEMBRERT
BEREH R - (REBRRNE N E - BT
MEEERIFBRBER - RMER
RENZHENR S B ILFrESNE R
oA RERFIEBERAIFEEN &
EETIERECE -

THEREM B RRIVEBRI RSN
BHNAE  SEKE  UAREMFHHRE
BETERBRRZZER.

. EEENERNER LR
BENTE BENEER UHES
MHERERERZR - RMEEEEE
By R BEEN BT - HAIREAERAK

e

PRELthEIRSN  RFIEDRIRERBRE T st ENES
HE - FERH EXEFHRE SRR
Bt H R EBER BRI R AEAR

HPPERREERREN AR MEN G ERM
BIUERRREREEER LR FIEEER
SERIEMAEE A G ERFIBILERFIERE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE R E T R S M RR K
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ENEE @

STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we £ ELAIRfE EBAEIEH » T FIREE ML IEY
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the  ZHAAR S FEMERNBRAEE  RMEBRE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore  $#E5 5+ 518 o R AFIE A BNET IR S IS LS
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 18 BRIEEFEEZRB A A ARIINESLEEIE 5
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or  1FiBIRE BAVIER T > IR SIETEATER MRS
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should ~ HEEE SIEEMMNEEBRBEELEN AR
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences — FJ#% > FFURE N ETR S ERZEE

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited BRI GESRGHERAAERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEE1AN

Ng Wai Man RER

Practising Certificate Number PO5309 BB EARITP0S309

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022 B8 T "F#=H=+—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

%$m 5

MWD ALd O LR LTl WA A w -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_—

-

F+_A=FT—HLFE

2021 2020
- T ZTHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
st FHET FET
Revenue A 5 123,630 66,184
Cost of revenue S ONDZN (127,439) (82,552)
Gross losses Es| (3,809) (16,368)
Other income HAaA 7 3,391 8,245
Other gains and losses Hhiizm & 518 7 (12,474) 34,801
Administrative expenses THEX (65,955) (123,697)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) loss ~ #[EIE1E (R(BE) I8 :
on:
— Finance lease receivables —RhEFR BRI 18 (1,208) (102,530)
— Receivable from sales-leaseback —EBOHERZFEWER
transaction 19 8,455 (96,896)
— Loan receivables —EWRER 19 1,208 (3,380)
— Trade receivables — B S REE= (601) -
— Other receivables —HthEW R 22 (8,817) -
— Property, plant and equipment e E NG 13 - (5,089)
— Interest in an associate upon —EMNEAFEEEZ
reclassification to assets classified as EEBNR—FKH=
held for sale N Z @ - (30,973)
Share of results of associates DEBMENTEE 21,342 (5,664)
Other expenses Hihpz (21) (661)
Finance costs B R AR (87) (391)
Loss before taxation PRI ATESIE (58,576) (342,603)
Income tax expense FTigi sz 9 (4,132) (13,975)
Loss for the year KEEEE 10 (62,708) (356,578)
Loss for the year attributable to: KREETIEZIBEGEE
Owners of the Company KABEEB A (40,619) (242,933)
Non-controlling interests JEERR IS R (22,089) (113,645)
(62,708) (356,578)
NOTES 2021 2020
e —E—F —ETEF
Loss per share (HK cents) SEE GBI 11
Basic 2K (2.41) (16.09)
Diluted #E (2.41) (16.09)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

xS HAH 2 T i 3R

i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_ZT_—

F+ZA=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E—F —E2TE2F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss for the year KEERIE (62,708) (356,578)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hth2Eml A~ )
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: A EEHDIEEBHZEE !
Exchange difference arising on translation to IThWEEREEELE ZERERR
presentation currency 6,966 3,417
Fair value changes on equity investment at fair R ATFEFBEMEEWATIRZ
value through other comprehensive income QAKX EZ N F{EED (18,698) (3,563)
Share of other comprehensive income of DEEZE AR EMEEUA
associates 4) (16)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, AEEEMPEES (OFRFIER)
net of income tax (11,736) (162)
Total comprehensive expense for the year REELHEFSZARRE (74,444) (356,740)
Total comprehensive expense for the year REE TS IEREG 2 EE 4828
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABEB A (52,352) (242,695)
Non-controlling interests JEER R R (22,092) (114,045)
(74,444) (356,740)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
_ G A MTIRRR

At 31 December 2021 W_ZE_—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
B C"ZT°THF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M35 FET FHET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment LY EN =Yy 13 88,520 90,112
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEYE BB
plant and equipment B2 BNRIE 17,847 -
Investment properties KEYE 14 142,369 148,331
Goodwill S 15 25,556 25,556
Interests in associates N =N s 16 99,608 95111
Equity investments at fair value through AT EEBEMEEmBA
other comprehensive income BIER 2 PRI & 17 108,762 123,781
Finance lease receivables RMEMREEWR 18 30,580 14,132
Loan receivables ERER 19 61,030 21,733
Deferred tax assets R TR B 29 = 1,579
Restricted bank deposits ZIREERITIER 24 18,404 20,724
Deposits B® 22 = 11,876
592,676 552,935
Current assets TRENEE
Inventories Fa 20 16,778 19,060
Contingent consideration receivables EUREAREB 25 = 2,553
Finance lease receivables RETEEEWER 18 122,782 153,913
Loan receivables FERERR 19 97,539 82,614
Trade receivables B 5 W 21 13,634 2,976
Other receivables, deposits and HAEWE e &
prepayments TEFIE 22 54,121 43,903
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBEGRIRZ
through profit or loss THEE 23 147,069 156,052
Deposit placed with non-bank EHRIERITEmEE
financial institutions T3 24 13,599 39,227
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIREEEY 24 23,299 132,483
488,821 632,781
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARa M BRLAR

At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—EC—F —ECEHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$’000
st FHET FAET
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accruals HhE = et E R 26 89,687 88,283
Deposits received from customers BWEFEE 18 12,268 -
Tax payable FE(SHRIE 21,586 21,105
Borrowings EEN 27 423,691 458,603
547,232 567,991
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (AR BEERE (58,411) 64,790
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTSHEE 534,265 617,725
Capital and reserves BRRE#E
Share capital [N 28 168,730 168,730
Reserves (B 346,981 399,333
Equity attributable to owners of the KABEB NEERER
Company 515,711 568,063
Non-controlling interests JEPERR IR B i = 35 6,555
Total equity s 515,746 574,618
Non-current liabilities ERHER
Deposits received from customers Sl EY=F 18 16,478 27,100
Borrowings EEN 27 = 14,786
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE 29 2,041 1,221
18,519 43,107
534,265 617,725

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and are signedon W _Z__F=B=+—HESH ot b

its behalf by: HUTEERFRESE
WONG LIK PING LAI KA FAI
EFhHE R
Director Director
EFE EE

10 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR R E)R

A D Afs ¢ DR Tl TP b e m - Wt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_Z_—F+_F=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFRE AR
Share Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation options Other revaluation Statutory ~ Accumulated Controlling
capital premium resere reserve reserve reserve reverse losses Subtotal interests Total
f£17 REEf Jei
Rt RIFEE  ERGE M Hftke e iERE  EHER Nt RRER 3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000
TEn ThEn TEn TEn TR TER TER TEL TEL TEL TEL
(Note b) (Note a)
() (Hza)
At 1 January 2020 RZB-EE-F-H 119192 1520921 (18714) 721 - 3450 6,397 (891,554) 740419 120,600 861,019
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - - - (42933)  (242933)  (l1364)  (36578)
Other comprehensive incomef(expense) AEEEM2E
forthe year WA/ ) - - 2085 - - (1847) - - pet) (400) (162)
Total comprehensive incomelexpense)  AEEZE
forthe year A/ (%) 48 - - 2085 - - 1847 SRR R (1405 (670
Issue of shares upon TREERRRY
completion of placing 23838 8407 - - - - - - 32245 - 32245
Issue of shares upon acquisiion WE-FHBLT%
of subsidiary 1R 25,700 28210 - - (15876) - - - 38094 - 38094
Transfer to accumulated osses upon~— HE—RBEATHER
disposal of an associate EEHBE - - 14,965 - - - - (14,965) - - -
At 31 December 2020 PIEIEE
+ZB=1-H 168730 1557598 (1,664) 727 (15876) 1,603 6,397 (1,149452) 568,063 6,555 574618
At 1 January 2021 R-%_-5-F-H 168,730 1,557,598 (1,664) 721 (15,876) 1,603 6,397 (1,149452) 568,063 6,555 574,618
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - - - (40,619) (40,619) (22,089) (62,708)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AEEEH2E
for the year WA/ () = - 6,969 - - (18,702) - - (11,733) 3 (11,736)
Total comprehensive incomel(expense)  AEE2E
for the year WA/ (B5) £ - - 6,969 - - (18,702) = (40,619) (52,352) (22,092) (74,444)
Share options lapsed BRERN - - - (721) - - - 727 - - -
Capital injecton from NCI SHERRRERTE - - - - - - - - - 15,572 15,572
Transfer of resenve upon disposal of ~ HERATEBBEMZ
equity investment at fair value ARG 2 R E
through other compressie income. - 4B ZH{E - - - - - (2,514) - 2,514 = = =
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-%
+ZE=+-B 168,730 1,557,598 5,305 - (15,876) (19,613) 62397 (1,186,830 515,711 35 515,746
Notes: BT
(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China  (a) FRERAREE N REFE (TFREL) BIMERD A EAIRARE

(“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the subsidiaries established in
the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital).
The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the directors of the relevant
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.

(b) Other reserve represents the value of the contingent consideration arrangement on
the escrow shares subject to the profit guarantee requirement of the acquisition
agreement as set out in note 41(a).

(b)

EEEDIRKMF R ETEMR NN EREZ Iééﬁ
PRIRBATRIRYI0NE A E R (ERFEEENBA
B RS0%EFRIN °é‘£1§%1ﬁ%$1§ﬂ&3§ﬁ%§w

NEEFRAMERMAERSITRAMHERERE
B NEA -

HhfEEIEH M A1) RBW B H SR
ReBRERFEERNDNANELHNEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

OB IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_ZE_—F+_B=+—BLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F C"Z-T&
HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Loss before taxation PRIGAIESIE (58,576) (342,603)
Adjustments for: EHTEEE
Finance costs FE A 31,404 40,105
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M -BEREREZITE 5,175 5,391
Change in fair value of financial assets at BN EEBERSRZ
fair value through profit or loss FTRBEEZ AT EEE (17) 2,548
Change in fair value on investment properties KREYEZ N EEE) 10,701 (4,091)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RIEHERE A B 2 m (1,151) -
Dividend income SISUION - (969)
Share of results of associates Pak: 3 d=l/NETE S (21,342) 5,664
Write-off disposal of property, Y2~ BR B B sk i
plant and equipment - 11
Impairment loss on property, Y B R R S R E RS 18
plant and equipment - 5,089
Impairment loss on interest in an associate B E A B R EN D EEDEE
upon reclassification to assets classified R EEE 2 REHE
as held for sale - 30,973
Exchange gain, net PE W i /3 2B (179) (17,784)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary RIS — XM E ARz W a= - (2,742)
Fair value change on financial liability BN EEBERSEZ
at fair value through profit or loss ETHEEZ AT EEE) - (15,660)
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables BEREENFURERE 1,208 102,530
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss on EBEERZ B
receivable from sale-leaseback transaction CRIERE]) HERIR (8,455) 96,896
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss on FEWERR CREREE) RERIE
loan receivables (1,208) 3,380
Change in fair value of contingent RS AR EZ AT EEF)
consideration receivables 2,553 2,498
Impairment loss on other receivables HihEW R ERE 8,817 -
Finance lease interest income FEREENBUA (2,844) (14,190)
Sale-leaseback transaction interest income E&OIBERZF BUWA - (706)
Write-off of inventories EFEA 725 419
Impairment of trade receivables B2 BRI E 601 -
Interest income FEUA (3,363) (6,339)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEEREFA KERHERE
working capital (35,951) (109,580)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (80 1,557 (14,288)
Increase in other receivables, HAEWER ¥ M Fa I mIBIE I
deposits and prepayments (7,159) (23,926)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivable B 5 ek (18 R (11,259) 78
Decrease in other payables and accruals HAE Bt &R (26,686) (945)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at AT EEBERIIRZ
fair value through profit or loss SRBEERLD M 13,701 (132,094)
Increase in finance lease receivables R E A & FE UG IE N (44,936) -
Decrease in deposits placed with FHN BB ERUR D
financial institutions 25,628 51,318
Cash used in operations KEFTAZIRE (85,105) (229,437)
Income tax paid BEATFTER (1,326) (14,142)
Finance lease interest income received BWNRERER B WA 2,844 14,190
Sale-leaseback transaction interest BUNEREIFARZZH EUA
income received = 706
Interest paid BENFE (2,577) (13,320)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ESFFAZIRES%E (86,164) (242,003)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEBeRER

T R Y R TN TS T YT LI L PRE W W T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_Z - —F+_F=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E—F TEIEF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREEH
Investment in equity investments KA AFEGEEEMEE
at fair value through other WABEE 2 IR &
comprehensive income (36,930) (74,340)
Addition of loan receivables fEIRERRIE (86,182) (50,378)
Repayment from loan receivables BEEINERN 45,063 95,523
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEVE BEKREKEZ
plant and equipment AT FIE (17,847) -
Purchases of property, EEME -WMEREE
plant and equipment (1,635) (534)
Purchases of Investment property EEKEYE - (32,947)
Net cash inflow arising from WENBAREE S
acquisition of subsidiaries BERAFEE 41a = 4,609
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE -BERRE
plant and equipment Frig§FIE 832 -
Proceeds from disposal of HERAFESBEMEME
equity investments at fair value through ITATBR 2 BR i3 &
other comprehensive income FrigsIa 52,876 5,938
Acquisition of associates U EBEE A E) = (55,529)
Proceed from disposal of interest HER—XKBE R FZ
in an associate HEMmPTIERIE = 335,664
Dividend received BUARE - 969
Interest received BUWFIE 3,363 6,339
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED BEES (FrA)  FRS
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REF%E (40,460) 235,314
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB IEEY
Proceeds from borrowings B FTigaIE 36 = 20,000
Repayment of borrowings (EFEEE 36 (1,204) (20,283)
Capital injection from NCI IR s EE RS T 15,572 -
Proceeds from shares placing A ECEFRISRIE - 32,245
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RE EEFASIREFEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 14,368 31,962
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HERRE£ZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W () JBEE (112,256) 25,273
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNRERIREZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 132,483 107,033
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SMEEREE 2 HE
RATE CHANGES 3,072 177
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERRERAESZEW
AT END OF THE YEAR 23,299 132,483
Represented by: (R
Bank balances and cash RITEE R IR E 23,299 132,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o o M s R I EE

mr‘:u i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_Z_—F+_H=+—HILEEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —IREE
China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the FEEEHEHREERAFRAR (KA
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the B) AR LEMAR RS SR
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability and UARREZBREEAE ERGHR
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited EBMEXSBERAT (BT &
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and Mo KRB Z Mt ER R FEEEZEM
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the WU A B E R — BN E -

corporate information section on the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries RRBI AN B AT @i IAEE) 2
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are provision of finance EREATEPEIEHRERE A6
lease and related consulting services in the PRC, the trading of BHRE REBESEE WERE K
equity securities, investment in properties, investment holdings, B HE B RAINE i E BERE
sale of food additives, sale of medical and health products and EmiSHE AR RAEEERURBE
sale of daily necessities and hygiene products money lending ESoE

business.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”). KANBZEEBEAANRE TARKE) o
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong FEMTEERRILLOETT (BT 250 '
Kong dollars (“HK$”) as the directors consider that it is a more RERRDA WP E AR EE
appropriate presentation for a company listed on the Stock Bz 2350 BAERR.

Exchange and for the convenience of the shareholders.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. BRI EIESTIE AR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B SER (TFERAHBR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HEEH)

(@  Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective at 1 (a) IRAAFTET BT E BRI
January 2021 HEA-R_FEZ—F—HF—
B&EX
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants gty (EEgsA
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of amended HKFRSs g EEGEERAEELAE T
that are first effective for the current accounting period of A ERER 2 RIS TE BT
the Group: HwEEA
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform ERGHEDER .  FIXEE
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2 BEUBREER ME—
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 BARBEUBRE F_BE
ERETR EBHMH
REER B REHR
BB REERFI6H
2185]
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions SFEVBREELE6  COVID-19
21857 HERE
AR

10 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_Z - —F+_F=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of accounting®

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from
Single Transaction®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and it Associate or Joint
Venture*

2.

14

A ET S EST BB R

BIR SR (TEBMFER
HER) @

(b)

B A B i R E R Z M ET AR
EIERMBREER

MreERfhBEREMEHKRE
RERIR TP RN ZATE] AEIERT
BRMBR SRR AER

ZEEMBHRRAM AEER
RBEREEMERERZRFE
Je

HEGFTER =k XEE}/)IL
EIL AL BIIER
BHEGER gtk
S5 K B
AR S#ER
B REH25E
2 &5
BEAGSER EEHESZE
B8R ZIERT =
BHEGHER BE-FE
E1258 2 B3] E2EER
SRR
IR I
BHEGHER E N YE
Fl65E 25T H—RTERR
Al Z PSR
TE2
EEMBREE RASSER
ElE=R A CH)
BERAUGREE REEFHHE
B 1058 Fe =YNSIEIR
EAGER  ErEZE
FBR BT HEELHE
T E
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I NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o I P i AR Mk
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_-_—F+_FB=+—HIEFE

2. RENEETR(ETE AR
BIR SR (TEBM R
SR @

B AR B i R E R Z M ET AR
EIERMBREER (&)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b)
not yet effective (Continued)

EFERYBERE T —F~
ZR|FleRr ABA=+HB%
CH COVID-1918
Bk

BRI TR S
ZER)H 15

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concession

beyond 30 June 2021

—EB-N\EE
TECSEY

Amendments to IFRS 1 - First-time
Adoption of IFRS; Amendments

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020

to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments;
Amendments to IFRS 16 and
Amendments to IAS 41 - Agriculture?

PR R S
R FEOE

ZEsT—8
RIERAAE PR
MRS

A ; BIFRRF
s el
BRZE
Sl —ERT
B ; BRR
s el
BlesEZ (B
IR EIRRE
st#ERI%EA41
BEZEFT—
mE
EBREEN—
BiTaMNz
P72

BEGsHER]
BI7FRZAERT

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a

Contract?

RIZZ—FNWB—Hm%z®
BRIAI EEEHARI £ R o

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. !

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 ATERTTF—HB—RA¥ZE
2022. BIAY AR £

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZZ2EZ=fF—HF—H%z#®&
2023. BIAR FEHAR A2 o

4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or 4 ZEIBHEEABRIZERM

BNFERBEENEERE
SHEEIBMER

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_Z - —F+_F=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current is based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability and explain that rights are in existence if covenants
are complied with at the end of the reporting period. The
amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’
to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 require entity to recognise
deferred tax on particular transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable
and deductible temporary differences. The proposed
amendments will typically apply to transactions such as
leases for the lessee and decommissioning obligations.
According to the amended guidance, a temporary
difference that arises on initial recognition of an asset or
liability is not subject to the initial recognition exemption if
that transaction gave rise to equal amounts of taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The directors anticipate that all of the relevant
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. The directors are
currently assessing the possible effect of these new or
revised standards on the Group’s results and financial
position in the first year of application. Except for those
mentioned above, these amendments are unlikely to have
material impact on the Group’s consolidated results and
consolidated financial position upon application.

2.

PRANFE] N AEEST BB
HSER ((FERMBR

S28]) @

(b)

B A B i R E R Z M ET AR
EIERMBREER (&)

BEEGFERF1SZIEET

ZEEITERE RERDER/R
FRIERBHERRERT
ERVER] WD R AR
BERECEMSTRELEERS
EEENERNTE R
TER S HIRE T 355 BIMEFRD
EEE-ZFEIITRSIATEE)
WEE UREEESERER
T RETLE -HEMEELRS
BETHFT e

BEEGERFI2IZE5TH
E-XEELZEEREEN
BB ERE R E

ERGERFIRZEITE
REBEMER 7 HERIELER
B R EEEEE TR
Z BRI KR AR R £ 2R - 2
BRESTBEBANABEANA
ERBFREBERS - RELE
115 MR ELE TR ER
M PR E R EE ) RIEEN
BEVEEISREEZERE
CERSERE NI el SR

ERTEE AEERFRREEM
ARz 5 EMEESTER
RERMPT A ERIRE - EFIHIE
ST UL FATET SARE ST R
BERERAEENAIERXER
MEIRR AR ez B fR b
XFrtE S ZEET N R’
FRFIEHAERZFE XS
Rir G M BARENERTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_-Z_-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o I P i AR Mk

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$62,708,000 (2020: HK$356,578,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$58,411,000 (2020: net current
assets of approximately HK$64,790,000) as of that date.
These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt about the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast covering a period of eighteen months from the
end of reporting period with careful consideration to the
future performance and liquidity of the Group and have
taken account of the following:

(i) A debtor of the Group served a letter on 1 March
2022 and confirmed to make an early repayment
of a loan receivable amounting to HK$56,000,000
by 1 July 2022;

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E_Z - —F+_F=1+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

(ii) Proceeds from planned disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (note 23) on the
assumption that a substantial discount is taken;
and

(iii) The loan contract with RMB200,000,000
(included in borrowings as disclosed in note 27)
was related to a finance lease arrangement and its
terms and amount of loan proceeds were back-
to-back with those of the finance lease agreement
with a lessee. The loan repayment is still in an
appeal process initiated by the counterparty of
the loan, which is detailed in note 33 and the
management considered it will not be settled
within next 12 months from the date of this report.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
forecast prepared by management and are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above-mentioned plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for at least the next twelve months
from 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
these consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 on a going concern
basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the financial statements to write down the values of
the assets to their realisable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of such
adjustments has not yet been reflected in the financial
statements.

3.

4 A
17 O = |

RE

3.1

MR ZEHEE
BHEHEK @

REMBRRZEBREE (@)

(i  (RRIBERAKIETE 518
HERAFEEBERS
BRz ERIEE (f15523) B9
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EECERE